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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ERW|E

Results and dividends

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year is HK$55,000,000 (2010: HK$51,965,000) and the
directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2010:

nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Management Discussion and Analysis
During the year ended 31st March 2011, the Group recorded
a consolidated turnover of HK$200,169,000 (2010 (restated):
HK$157,093,000) and a profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$55,000,000 (2010: HK$51,965,000),
including fair value gains on investment properties of
HK$31,001,000 (2010: HK$22,504,000) and fair value losses
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$10,945,000 (2010: gains of HK$21,467,000).

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s television
segment was increased by approximately 16% to the level
of approximately HK$121 million (2010: HK$104 million).
Since the launch of its first broadcasting channel in 2001,
which broadcasts movies from the Group’s film library and
other programs from its business partners, the Group has
continuously explored opportunities to broaden the revenue
streams of its television operations. As at 31st March 2011,
the Group provided three channels to now TV in Hong Kong.
In July 2007 and October 2008, the Group launched a movie
channel and a drama channel respectively through the network
of SingTel and under the name of MioTV in Singapore. These
channels contributed steady and secured contribution to the

Group.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAT

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In November 2009, the Group entered into an agreement with
HBO Asia to provide contents of films and drama through the
launch of “RED Channel” in different territories by stages. This
co-operation has enhanced the Group’s exposure to the global
entertainment market and also helped the Group to establish
its channel brandname. RED Channel has been launched in
Indovision and First Media Cable in Indonesia in April and
August 2010 respectively and Hypp TV, the IPTV platform of
TM Net in Malaysia in October 2010. In Philippines, CableBoss
was appointed as a cable TV distributor of RED channel
in August 2010 and RED channel was also launched on
Philippines Multi-media Systems, Inc.’s direct-to-home
platform in November 2010. RED Channel is also seeking the

opportunity to launch in Vietham soon.

In August 2010, the Group also launched a channel through
Chunghwa Telecom Movie On Demand (MOD) platform in

Taiwan.

The Group has penetrated into the market of Japan since
September 2008. At the end of May 2011, the Group ceased
its channel in Sky PerfecTV for ease of cost efficiency and is
now co-operating with cable and internet operators in Japan
such as yahoo BBTV and Gyao for launching its programs.
The Group also commenced subscription video-on-demand
(“SVOD?”) service through the platform of J:COM in June 2011.

Looking forward, the Group aims to provide channels to other
countries, explore opportunities of additional revenues arising
from TV channels such as advertising income from available
air-time in those TV channels, and developing channels with

increasing varieties.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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The contribution of revenues from the Group’s film exhibition
and film rights licensing and sub-licensing segment was
increased from HK$15 million (restated) to HK$53 million and
its artiste management sector also contributed approximately
HK$5 million (2010: nil) to the Group.

During the year, the Group acquired the China rights of two
films titled “I Love Hong Kong” and “Don’t Go Breaking My
Heart”, the former was released during the financial year while
the latter was released immediately after the year end. Both
of which received positive responses from the market and
contributed satisfactory revenues and return to the Group. As
at 31st March 2011, a number of other film and drama projects
are being produced and planned and more films are expected
to be released in the forthcoming financial years. Besides self-
producing and investing, the Group will also make use of its
wide distribution network developed for years and develop its
business of distribution agency for film and drama projects.
This sector also provides steady and secured income source

to the Group.

The Group will continue to strengthen its film library through
acquisition, own production and co-production. Equipped by
the Group’s film library and through the Group’s experience
and network in program sourcing, the Group is confident
that it will continue to provide high quality and customised

programs to its audiences.

Following the number of broadcasting channels in Hong Kong
and China, the demand for channel contents is expected
to increase continuously and the Group believes that it will
receive encouraging results and fruitful rewards from these

new market opportunities.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAT

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The Group signed up to manage the jobs of a number of pop
stars and artistes in Hong Kong and China and commenced
the development of the Group’s artiste management business
during the year. It becomes a base to build our talent
management business and the Group will continue to seek
potential artistes and performers in order to build up a talent

pool from which all future productions will be benefited.

Following the development of its economic environment,
China’s film exhibition industry and box office income has
grown rapidly in the recent years. Taking into account of the
huge demand but limited theatre supply in China, the Group
started to penetrate into the China theatrical market. During
the year, a team was set up for the theatrical operation and
the Group has located sites in Tianjin, Yangzhou, Shanghai
and Chengdu to develop theatres there. All of those planned
theatres have over 1,000 seats and are multiplexes, digital
equipped and certain of which are also 3D equipped. These
theatres are expected to come into operation within 1-2 years.
The Group’s another investment in a Guangzhou theatre is
also in the process of seeking approval from relevant authority

and is expected to be completed shortly.

The revenues attributable to sale and distribution of films and
programs in audio visual product format dropped from HK$38
million to HK$22 million, which is mainly attributable to the
overall industrial climate and less new titles were released
during the year. Following the shrinkage of video industry
and rapid development of technology, the distribution of films
and programs is no longer limited to video discs but in digital
formats available over the Internet. The Group is now exploring
to diversify its distribution network to online downloading and
streaming in order to adapt to the expected future consumer
behavior. The Group considers the new media investment will
ignite a revolution to the video distribution industry and fit the

expected market demand.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Benefiting from the rise in property market in Hong Kong and
China during the year, the investment properties portfolio
of the Group contributed a surplus on revaluation of HK$31
million during the year, and that segment also contributed

steady rental income of HK$7 million during the year.

During the year, the Company completed a top-up placing
of 722,580,000 new shares and raised net receipt of
approximately HK$141 million for the Group’s future business
development and working capital requirement. Following the
top-up placing, the equity base of the Company was further
broadened and strengthened and the Group believes that
it will continue to be benefited from that and its increasing

exposure to the global entertainment industry.

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 15th
April 2011 (the “Announcement”), the Company is still
consulting legal advice regarding the Case as defined in the
Announcement and taking appropriate course of action to
defend the Case.

Looking forward, the Group will explore other opportunities to
generate greatest returns for its shareholders and reward their

long-term support.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAT

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Liquidity and financial resources

At 31st March 2011, the Group has available banking facilities
of approximately HK$73.6 million, of which approximately
HK$11.6 million were utilised. Certain of the Group’s
deposits and properties with aggregate net carrying values of
HK$235.2 million were pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities. The Group’s gearing ratio of 2% as at 31st March
2011 was based on the total of bank loans and overdrafts
of HK$11,616,000 (of which HK$5,381,000, HK$902,000,
HK$3,140,000 and HK$2,193,000 are repayable within one
year, in the second year, in the third to fifth year and after the
fifth year respectively) and obligations under finance leases
of HK$1,007,000 (of which HK$755,000 and HK$252,000
are repayable within one year and in the second year
respectively) and the shareholders’ funds of approximately
HK$590,236,000. The Group’s borrowings and bank balances
are primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi and has no significant exposure to foreign currency

fluctuations.

At 31st March 2011, the Company had contingent liabilities
in respect of guarantees given to banks for facilities of its
subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$36,700,000
and commitments in respect of films production, film and
program licensing agreements and construction in progress
amounting to approximately HK$50 million. The commitments
will be financed by the Group’s internal resources and banking

facilities.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
ELRENEEBRA T

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Employees

At 31st March 2011, the Group employed 117 staff.
Remuneration is reviewed periodically based on individual
staff’s performance. In addition to the basic salaries, staff
benefits include discretionary bonus, medical insurance
scheme and contributory provident fund. The Group also has
a share option scheme whereby qualified employees may be

granted options to acquire shares of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Kuo Hsing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th June 2011
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAT

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

Executive directors

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing, aged 52, is the founder, Chairman and
a major shareholder of the Group which was established
in 1984, and a recognised leader of the Hong Kong
entertainment industry. With years of experience in the home
video and media entertainment industry, he is responsible for
the corporate strategy and development of the Group. He is
the Vice Chairman of the Federation of Motion Film Producers
of Hong Kong Limited since 1998 and appointed Member of
the Election Committee for the Performing Arts sub-sector of
the Legislative Council Election. He is also the independent
non-executive director of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”)
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

Exchange”).

Mr. TONG Hing Chi, aged 56, is the Managing Director of
the Group, responsible for the Group’s overall general and
financial administration. He has also been involved in the
Group’s corporate strategy and development since he joined
the Group in 1992. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
20 years of experience in the entertainment and multimedia
industry in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. TONG has been
the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Motion Picture Industry
Association Limited (“MPIA”) since 2001.

Mr. CHAU Kei Leung, aged 47, is responsible for the selection
and acquisition of films and programs and the formulation of
sales and marketing strategies. He is also responsible for the
sub-licensing of film rights to overseas video distributors and
TV operators in Hong Kong and overseas. He joined the Group
in 1987 and has over 20 years of experience in the home video

entertainment industry.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EENSEEEBABZEN

Non-executive directors

Mr. CHAN Ngan Piu, aged 76, has years of experience in the
manufacturing sector in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Mr.
CHAN joined the Group in 1988.

Mr. Hugo SHONG, aged 55, was appointed as the non-
executive director of the Company in February 2007 and is the
Executive Vice President of International Data Group (“IDG”)
— the world’s leading IT media, research and exposition
company, President of IDG-Asia, and a partner of IDG Capital
Partners, which has headed IDG’s operations in information
technology (“IT”) publishing, market research and tradeshows
in the Asia Pacific region. Mr. Shong is now the trustee of
Boston University. Mr. Shong has been appointed as the
Vice Chairman and a non-executive director of Media China
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of

the Stock Exchange, with effective from 21st December 2009.

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Lee G. LAM, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1 February 2007.
He holds a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics and Sciences,
a Master of Science in Systems Science, and a Master of
Business Administration, all from the University of Ottawa in
Canada, a Post-graduate Diploma in Public Administration
from Carleton University in Canada, a Post-graduate Diploma
in English and Hong Kong Law and a Bachelor of Law (Hons)
from Manchester Metropolitan University in the U.K., a PCLL
in law from the City University of Hong Kong, a Certificate in
Professional Accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong SCS, a LLM in law from the University of Wolverhampton
in the U.K., and a Doctor of Philosophy from the University of
Hong Kong. Dr. Lam has over 28 years of multinational general
management, strategy consulting, corporate governance,
investment banking, and direct investment experience. He is
Chairman of Monte Jade Science and Technology Association
of Hong Kong, and serves on board of several publicly-listed
companies in the Asia Pacific region. Having served as a Part-

time Member of the Central Policy Unit of the Government of
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAT

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for two terms,
Dr. Lam is a Member of the Jilin Province Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (and a
former Specially-invited Member of the Zhejiang province
Committee), a Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers,
a Board Member of the East-West Center Foundation, a
Member of the Young Presidents’ Organization, a Member
of the Chief Executives Organization, a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors, a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Arbitrators, a Member of the General Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee of the Chamber
of Hong Kong Listed Companies, a Vice President of the
Hong Kong Association for the Advancement of Real Estate
and Construction Technology, a founding Board Member and
the Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong-Vietham Chamber
of Commerce, and a visiting professor (in the subject of
corporate governance and investment banking) at the School
of Economics & Management of Tsinghua University in
Beijing. On 24 November 2010, Dr. Lam was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of Sino Resources Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange in Hong Kong, and he resigned from the Board of
Directors of that company with effect from 23 March 2011. On
12 January 2011, Dr. Lam was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of TMC Life Sciences Berhad, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in
Malaysia. Dr. Lam resigned from the Board of Directors of
Finet Group Limited and China.com Inc. with effect from 25

January 2011 and 23 March 2011, respectively.
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EENSEEEBABZEN

Ms. WANG Huarong, aged 47, has over 20 years of
experience, including management experience, in information
technology and financial service industry and was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company in
October 2005. She had been a General Manager of Sparkice
(Hong Kong) Ltd. which is a leading e-commerce company
focusing on international trade of China market, a Senior
Software Engineer at DSP Development Corporation in Boston,
and worked at Fixed Income Technology Group of Goldman
Sachs International. Ms. WANG received her Bachelor of
Science degree in computer science from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics, and a Master of Science degree
in Information Systems from North-Eastern University in the
USA.

Mr. CHEUNG Ming Man, aged 54, has extensive experience
in the sector of performance and cultural and was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in September 2005. Mr. CHEUNG has also participated in a
number of community associations, including the Hong Kong
Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’ Association (Vice Chairman);
The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Election
Committee (First and Second Election Committee Member);
Deputy of the National People’s Congress of PRC Election
Committee (Ninth and Tenth Election Committee Member) and
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Guangxi

Zhuangzu Zizhiqu (Member).

Senior management

Mr. CHAN Lun Ho, aged 41 is the Group’s financial controller
and is responsible for all financial and accounting matters
of the Group. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
18 years of auditing and accounting experience. He joined the
Group in July 2002.
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Mr. LONG Sao lan, aged 52, is the Program Development
Manager of MATV Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
LONG is responsible for the development and management
of the Group’s TV operations. Mr. LONG has over 30 years
of experience in TV operations. Prior to joining the Group in
December 2000, Mr. LONG worked for Commercial Radio,
Television Broadcasting Ltd, HK Cable TV and Chinese

Entertainment Television.
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Compliance with the code on corporate
governance practices

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and the code provisions (the “Code”) as
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). The principles adopted by the Company
emphasise a quality board, transparency and accountability
to shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, the Company
has complied with the Code for the year ended 31st March
2011, with the exception of the deviation in respect of the
appointment term of non-executive directors as mentioned
below.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of
conduct and the required standard of dealings and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors for
the year ended 31st March 2011, except that Mr. Li Kuo Hsing,
the Chairman of the Company, without notifying the designated
director of the Company for the purpose of acknowledgement
of the Chairman’s dealings, acquired 20,000,000 and
10,000,000 shares of the Company on 12th May 2010 and 13th
May 2010 respectively. The Company shall iterate and remind
the directors from time to time in respect of the relevant
procedures, rules and requirements in relation to directors’
dealings in order to ensure the directors’ compliance.

Board of directors

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of financial statements, which shall give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. Details of the
basis of preparation of the financial statements are set out in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The Board
is also responsible for formulating the Group’s long-term
strategy, determining and approving the Group’s significant
transactions and supervising the management to ensure
thorough implementation of the Group’s policies and effective
performance of their duties. The Board also conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group. Other decisions are delegated to management.
As at 31st March 2011, the Board comprised eight Directors,
including three executive Directors — Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (the
Chairman), Mr. Tong Hing Chi (the Chief Executive Officer) and
Mr. Chau Kei Leung, two non-executive Directors — Mr. Hugo
Shong and Mr. Chan Ngan Piu, and three independent non-
executive Directors — Dr. Lee G. Lam, Ms. Wang Huarong and
Mr. Cheung Ming Man. Biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 11 to 15.
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Board of directors (Continued)
There is no non-compliance with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules and there is no relationship among members of

the Board and the independent non-executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should
be appointed for specific terms, There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive directors of the Company,
however, they are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with Bye-laws of the Company. Accordingly the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken
to deal with the requirement in respect of the appointment
terms of non-executive directors as required under the code

provision.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of the irrespective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance

with the terms of the guidelines.

During the year, all of the board members, except for Mr.
Chan Ngan Piu, attended the two board meetings to approve
the interim and annual results. The executive directors also

held and attended three other board meetings.

Chairman and the chief executive officer

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer are separate and are not performed
by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies and policies of the Company. The Chief Executive
Officer, supported by the senior management, is responsible
for managing the Group’s businesses and responsibilities,
implementing major strategies, making day-to-day decisions

and coordinating overall business operations.
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Nomination of directors

No nomination committee was established by the Company.

The Board is mainly responsible for identifying suitable
candidates to be members of the Board when there is a
vacancy or any additional director is considered necessary.
The Board will review the qualifications of the candidates
identified and determine the suitability of their qualifications,

experience and background.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by two board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on

matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

(1) Audit Committee
The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21
to 3.23 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual
and interim reports; (b) to discuss and review with the
auditors of the Company on the scope and findings of
the audit; and (c) to supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control procedures of the Group.
The audit committee consists of the three independent
non-executive directors of the Company, namely Dr. Lee
G. Lam, Ms. Wang Huarong and Mr. Cheung Ming Man.

The chairman of the committee is Dr. Lee G. Lam.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year.

All of the members attended the meetings.
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Board Committees (Continued)

(1) Audit Committee (Continued)
The Group’s unaudited interim results, annual audited
results and the system of internal control during the year
ended 31st March 2011 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, which is of opinion that the preparation of
such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure
have been made.

(2) Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee according to the relevant provisions of the
Listing Rules with written terms of reference. lts primary
duties are to (a) make recommendations to the Board
based on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of directors and senior management; and
(b) establish formal and transparent procedures for
remuneration policy development.

The remuneration committee consists of the three
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Dr. Lee G. Lam, Ms. Wang Huarong and Mr.
Cheung Ming Man. The chairman of the committee is Dr.
Lee G. Lam.

During the year, the Committee met once to discuss
remuneration related matters. All of the members
attended the meeting. During the meeting, the
performance and remuneration of the executive directors
were assessed and the policy for which was discussed
and approved.

Auditor’s remuneration

The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the independent auditor’s
report on pages 35 to 37. An amount of approximately HK
$1,461,000 was charged to the Group’s consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31st March 2011. There was no
significant non-audit service assignment undertaken by the
external auditor during the year.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2011.

Principal activities and analysis of operations
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note

39 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the

consolidated income statement on page 38.
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 43 to 44 and note

28(b) to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$1,476,000.

Property, plant and equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Principal investment properties

Details of the movements in investment properties held by
the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of those principal investment properties

are set out on pages 175 to 176.
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Share capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are

set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves

At 31st March 2011, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$231,309,000, comprising contributed surplus
of HK$235,020,000 less accumulated losses of HK$3,711,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus shall not be distributable if there are

reasonable grounds for believing that:

()  the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable

to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
174.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the

year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the

year.

ESERE

&
KRB ZRASBHEBHANG ST ERRM
*27

] it 93 i G 06

RZZBE——F=A=+—HB > AAFZAf#
2K % #5 5231,309,000/8 T BIEBAR
£ 235,020,000 & jT iRl R 51 E518 3,711,000

JC ©

REERE NN\ —FRAEEE) -
HAEEHBEHELTER  ASARY
RBDIK :

AR AEE R REE D EBEE
Braf; %

—
=

(i) ARRAEEZTEREESEHLERE
BERECRTRARRDEER 2R
{E o

BEWEE
AARZARAMEREAL BRI E LS
REZRE MEREEATERELLT
AR BB AR R B EIR 2 R -

hFEMBERE
AEBMAXTEPRFEZEE AERE
B HMERRNE 1745 -

BERAROF ARG
ADARERNLEEEEETRE © RO F

FEEAMBEARARFALEEEEMAR
BIMRAD ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 £ #R



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

Share option scheme

A share option scheme of the Company was adopted by the

shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting
held on 30th August 2005 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The

principal terms are set out as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to attract
and retain the best quality personnel for the development
of the Group’s businesses; and to provide additional
incentives to employees, consultants, agents, advisers,
customers, suppliers, business and joint venture partners
of the Company, its subsidiaries and its associated

companies.

Participants

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), the board of directors (the “Board”)
may offer to grant share options (the “Options”) to
any director and employee, consultant, agent, advisor,
customer, supplier, business and joint venture partner
of the Company, its subsidiaries and its associated
companies (“Qualifying Grantee”) as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select. Provided the Board so agrees,
such offer may be accepted by a related trust of the

relevant Qualifying Grantee.

Administration
The Share Option Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Board. The Board’s administrative

powers include the authority, in its discretion:

(i)  to select Qualifying Grantees to whom Options may

be granted under the Share Option Scheme;
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(c) Administration (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

to determine, subject to the requirements of the
Listing Rules and the law, and the time of the grant

of Options;

to determine the number of Shares to be covered
by each Option granted under the Share Option

Scheme;

to approve forms of option agreements;

to determine the terms and conditions of any

Option. Such terms and conditions may include:

° the exercise price;

o the period within which the Shares must be
taken up under the Option, which must not be

more than 10 years from the date of grant;

° the minimum period, if any, for which an
Option must be held before it can vest (the
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify

any minimum holding period);

° the performance targets, if any, that must be
achieved before the Option can be exercised
(the Share Option Scheme itself doe s not

specify any performance targets);

° the amount, if any, payable on application
or acceptance of the Option and the period
within which payments or calls must or may
be made or loans for such purposes must be

repaid;
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Administration (Continued)
(vi) to construe and interpret the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and Options granted pursuant to

the Share Option Scheme;

(vi) to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and
regulations relating to the Share Option Scheme;

and

(viii) subject to the provisions relating to grant to
substantial share holders and independent non-
executive directors and their respective associates
in the Share Option Scheme, to vary the terms and
conditions of any option agreement (provided that
such variation is not inconsistent with the terms of

the Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme).

Life of the Share Option Scheme and grant of Options
The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of adoption. On and
subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Board shall
be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing on
the date of adoption to make an offer for the grant of an
Option to any Qualifying Grantee as the Board may in its

absolute discretion select.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance of Option
offer

An offer of the grant of any Option shall remain open for
acceptance by the Qualifying Grantee concerned and,
provided the Board so agrees, by a related trust of the
named Qualifying Grantee for a period of 28 days from
the date of the offer (or such longer period as the Board

may specify in writing).

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company on

acceptance of the Option offer.
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular
Option shall be such price as the Board may in its
absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of the
relevant Option but the subscription price shall not be
less than whichever is the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)

the nominal value of a share.

Option period

The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an Option shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period
must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the

relevant Option.

Maximum number of shares available under the Share

Option Scheme

(i)  Overriding Limit
The limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding Options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. No options may be granted
under any schemes of the Company if this will result

in the limit being exceeded.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of shares available under the Share
Option Scheme (Continued)
(i) Mandate Limit
In addition to the limit set out in sub-paragraph (h)
(i) above and prior to the approval of a Refreshed
Mandate Limit as referred to in sub-paragraph (h)
(iii) below, the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Option Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (“Initial
Mandate Limit”). Options lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any other
schemes will not be counted for the purpose of

calculating the 10% limit.

(iiij) Refreshing of Mandate Limit
The Company may by ordinary resolutions of the
shareholders refresh the Mandate Limit provided
the Company shall issue a circular to shareholders
containing such information as required by the
Listing Rules before such approval is sought.
However, the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under all of the schemes of the Company under the
limit as refreshed (“Refreshed Mandate Limit”) must
not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the Refreshed Mandate Limit.
Options previously granted under the schemes
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the scheme or exercised options)
will not be counted for the purpose of calculating

the limit as refreshed.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Share option scheme (Continued)

(h) Maximum number of shares available under the Share

Option Scheme (Continued)

(iv) Grant to specifically identified participants

(v)

Specifically identified participants may be granted
Options beyond the Mandate Limit. The Company
may in addition seek separate approval by its
shareholders in general meeting for granting
Options beyond the Mandate Limit provided the
Options in excess of the limit are granted only to
participants specifically identified by the Company
and a circular to shareholders containing such
information as required by the Listing Rules is
issued before such approval is sought. The date
of the board meeting for proposing such further
grant should be taken as the date of grant for such

grants.

Limit for each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of Options granted (whether
exercised or outstanding) in any 12-month period to
each participant must not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue. Where any further grant of Options to a
participant would result in the shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted to such person (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further
grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the
shares in issue, such further grant shall be subject
to separate approval by shareholders in general
meeting with the relevant participant and his
associates abstaining from voting. Prior to seeking
such approval, the Company shall issue a circular
containing to shareholders such information as
required by the Listing Rules. The date of the board
meeting for proposing such further grant should be

taken as the date of grant for such grants.
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(h) Maximum number of shares available under the Share
Option Scheme (Continued)
Following the shareholders’ resolution passed on
30th August 2010, the Mandate Limit was refreshed
to 563,303,452 shares of HK$0.02 each, representing
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of passing the
resolution. As at 31st March 2011, there was no option

granted under the Mandate Limit.

Directors
The directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Executive directors

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing (Chairman)

Mr. TONG Hing Chi (Managing Director)
Mr. CHAU Kei Leung

Non-executive directors
Mr. CHAN Ngan Piu
Mr. Hugo SHONG

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Lee G. LAM

Ms. WANG Huarong

Mr. CHEUNG Ming Man

The directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the

Company in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ service contracts

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its subsidiaries or its fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Biographical details of directors and senior
management
Brief biographical details of directors and senior management

are set out on pages 11 to 15.
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EEEHE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests
and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation

At 31st March 2011, the interests and short positions of

each director and chief executive in the shares, underlying

shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (“SFQ”), as recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO

or as otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the Company

EFRESTHRASRELFR
ERAAHEREEZRG - HEK
REEEZHEER XS

RZZB——F=ZA=+—H8  REXQXTK
HHREERM(TFEHEH ) EXV I 352
HRETFEFREZERMATHERBEADAEE
ZBH EEBERESTBRAEBERDTAR
HEBELE(RIBSFHRIAZER) 2R
HEROREEZ ZERRABNT

(a) SEREEOC2EBTZFATEER
% of the
issued share
capital of the
Company as

Number of shares beneficially held at 31st March
— Long position 2011
HEaRacRmMBA — 8 W—E——=Ff
Personal Family Corporate =A=+—H
Name of director interests interests interests EEXELFERT
ERElE BAER FERER EEES BEZzESL
Mr. LI Kuo Hsing 198,537,500 189,843,750 2,172,887,550 45.47%
ZEEEE Note (i) Note (ii)
BrEt () BrEE (in)
Mr. TONG Hing Chi 16,875,000 — — 0.30%
BEREE
Mr. CHAU Kei Leung 36,045,000 — — 0.64%
BAHEHREE
Mr. CHAN Ngan Piu 10,125,000 — — 0.18%
PREREZ 4
Notes: et

(i) These shares are held by Ms. LI Pik Lin, the spouse of
Mr. LI Kuo Hsing.

(i)  These shares are held by Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited,
a company beneficially controlled by Mr. LI Kuo Hsing.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests
and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation
(Continued)

(b) Interest in subsidiaries of the Company

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing personally holds non-voting deferred

shares of HK$1 each in the following subsidiaries:

ESERE

EFRESTHRASRELFR
ERAAHEREEZRG - HEK
REEEZHEER XS
(#&)

(b) FLFIMBLARER
FHELEBAFETINBERARTNER
EE1BT 2 EBRERIELERD

Number of non-voting
deferred shares held

Personal interests

FRriSERIERE
Name 18 BizzHEEARS
Mei Ah Laser Disc Company Limited EREHXEERAA 100,000
Mei Ah Video Production Company Limited EnHFEERRAR 10,000
Mei Ah Investment Company Limited EuERERRAA 500,000

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its
associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated

corporation.

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year, the directors
and chief executives (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company and its associated

corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

BREMESN  REREMER - &AAF -
MEAR - Eﬂ?f‘ﬁ%”j_ﬁﬁ“‘é&jm
BIIVAEMZY EAAAEBERESTH
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BEARTRREEHEEIEZRY - HEAR
DREEE 2T AERIKRE ©

BrEMEIN  REREAKE SEBRE
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Oz ER) AR TEERITEAR
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EEEHE

Substantial shareholders’ interests and/or FERRNE QAT ZKD R IER
short positions in the shares, underlying BRipZEER SikE

shares of the Company
The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31st
March 2011, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These
interests are in addition of those disclosed above in respect of

the directors and chief executives.

Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.02 each in the Company

RBRE S RPIEXVEEI36IFEARE Z
FERREBETHER R-ZF-——F=A
=t—HB  ARAEEBMNUTHEEAQFD
BIOTRES%FUE T ERRERERLR ©
ZERRR LB ERBESR&STR
ABELUIN 2 o

BREEO0.02ETZE LT HiEAK

Number of shares — Long position

BR®E — ¥R

Interests of

persons acting

Corporate in concert

interests —HTH Total

EEES ATz st
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund — A L.P. 54,460,000 291,300,000 345,760,000
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund — L.P. 266,472,000 79,288,000 345,760,000
IDG-Accel China Investors L.P. 24,828,000 320,932,000 345,760,000
IDG-Accel China Investors Associates Ltd. 345,760,000 — 345,760,000
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Associates L.P. 345,760,000 — 345,760,000
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP Associates Ltd. 345,760,000 — 345,760,000
Zhou Quan E& 345,760,000 — 345,760,000
Mc Govern Patrick J. 345,760,000 — 345,760,000
Breyer James 345,760,000 — 345,760,000
Notes: Btet -
(@) The total long position interests in the above parties of () Lut ALt z#iF AR 345,760,000 B A&

BRI — MM EARARZE——F
ZA=+—B2BRTKRE6.14% °

345,760,000 shares, representing 6.14% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31st March 2011, refer to the
same parcel of shares.
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Management contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are

as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier

— five largest suppliers in aggregate

Sales
— the largest customer

— five largest customers in aggregate

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major

suppliers or customers.

Connected transactions
The related party transactions as disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements do not constitute connected

transactions under the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of
at least 25% of the Company’s issued shares at the date of

this report.

Corporate Governance Report
Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out on

pages 16 to 19.
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EEEHE

Directors’ interests in competing business

None of the directors, management or shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) has an interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the business

of the Group.

Subsequent events
Details of significant events occurring after the balance sheet
date are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Auditor
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Li Kuo Hsing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th June 2011
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

PRICEWATERHOUSE( QOPERS

B X BET R

BERCKEEFENERAR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT
GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to
173, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31st March 2011, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com

¥ 3L 1% By B 4R
BXRTEMERAKREARLFRE

(REFRZZMAEIHIBERLE])

FRZREMATEB RM DS ERINERE
BEITIEETREEAMNEBERAT(UT
ERIEARDREMBAR(GHE EEE )
MRS BHRE  BAEVHBRREEN=
E——F=ZA=+-HWHEENQATEER
BREBZZALFENGERER K&
2EARER SREEREHRNGEELSR
BR URTESHBRMERH M7
BEH -

EFNGEMERRARENRE

Y2 7B B 7% R 5 2 B R B B( D ARSI B I
BRAERARSMBRER  USKEESHBER
RIFHEEMAFHRMR  REBHIBE
HESMBRRALBNRIZS - UERF
EMBRRAFEERAFRERMEHM
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN ZEEHRE

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 HE RS

Opinion =R

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give BMRE ZEGEUERRCRETEY
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company B ERNEEMATZHRME AT REE
and of the Group as at 31st March 2011, and of the Group’s BR=E——F=ZAZ=Z+—HMWEHIRR
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance REEEEEZEZALFENFBERRER
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have 2 WERBEE(AABRIDNEEZEREF
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure BiRE -

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers BERKEDEMERERR

Certified Public Accountants HESF AT

Hong Kong, 29th June 2011 BB ZE-——FXA=+HH
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

=G

For the year ended 31st March 2011 B2 —F——4#=H=+—HI-FZF

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains— net

Selling and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs — net
Share of profit of associated companies

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year
Profit/(loss) attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share attributable to
equity holders of the Company
during the year
Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

W 5

SHERA

EF

HApyg A
Hfplzs — F8
HERTSHERMX
THRX

#ENR

BAFEUL A
BhE A
BERA — FHE
FE 15 Bk 2 BRI

FRFRSIRATFIE
FriS B

FAFAE
FE{& %), (&) -

RABEBEFEA
FFIER S

FAFESRAABEFAS

2T

BREXREF
BREERT

2011 2010

—E——% -2

Note HK$°000 HK$°000
ik FET FET
(Restated)

(&&=5)

(Note 2.1(b))

(FfzE2.1(b))

5 200,169 157,093
7 (119,509) (91,992)
80,660 65,101

5 18,314 14,708
6 29,202 43,920
7 (9,569) (9,242)
7 (59,252) (52,618)
59,355 61,869

8 638 1,405
8 (821) (8,435)
(183) (2,030)

18 276 —
59,448 59,839
9 (11,004) (7,631)
48,444 52,208

55,000 51,965

(6,556) 243

48,444 52,208

HK cents HK cents

y-:3/1/] B

11 0.99 1.06
11 0.99 1.06

The notes on pages 47 to 173 are an integral part of these

FBATENBEZHERAGEMBHRR 2B

consolidated financial statements. @ 20 o

Dividends B

XA
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w
N
|
|
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SmezERER

B2 —ZF——14F = J=+—HI-F/Z For the year ended 31st March 2011

2011 2010
—2—% —ZE-TF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
HtaE TFAET FAET
Profit for the year FRFA 48,444 52,208
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Eft2mEEE (&HiR) :
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation BFREMELG (i)
of buildings 14(k) 4,735 (2,418)
Deferred taxation arising from BFEGH(RR) BHEE
revaluation (surplus)/deficit ZIRIETIE
of buildings 31 (734) 399
Fair value (losses)/gains on available- At HERKEE 2 A FE
for-sale financial assets (F1]) W= 23(a) (17,333) 26,906
Release upon disposal of available-for- & Al fit H & B # & E R
sale financial assets e 23(a) (7,055) —
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At E R K& E R EEE
financial assets 23(a) 1,261 —
Currency translation differences SN E R 397 (1,599)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income SFREMSEH(EE)
for the year, net of tax & MERIRIE (18,729) 23,288
Total comprehensive income FRXEKSEHE
for the year 29,715 75,496
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EE2ERE (FiE) a8 :
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company AATERIFEA 36,365 75,270
Non-controlling interests JEfE iR (6,650) 226
Total comprehensive income FRZAKSEEH
for the year 29,715 75,496
The notes on pages 47 to 173 are an integral part of these FAT BT3B ARG B RET 2
consolidated financial statements. EE8 D °
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
meEEBER

As at 31st March 2011 R=—ZF——#=H=+—H

2011 2010
—2——% —E-EF
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
KtaE FEiT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Leasehold land and land use rights HE L 4 b AR 13 31,237 32,025
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RFRE 14 118,256 105,852
Intangible assets mEEE 15 - —
Investment properties BREYE 16 146,725 123,898
Interests in associated companies REEE N E 2 Em 18 276 -
Interest in a jointly controlled entity REEEHEE 2w 19(a) - —
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEMKEE 23(a) 22,096 45,086
Film rights, films in progress and film BEXNRE - BEPEY
royalty deposits REZREZSE 17 121,567 74,198
440,157 381,059
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 24 5,732 6,951
Trade and other receivables 5 N HEMEWIE 25 29,258 36,794
Amount due from an associated
company FEUR B & N\ T FRIE 18 3,479 —
Financial assets at fair value through RATEFFABRERZ
profit or loss Mg EE 23(b) 51,095 50,124
Pledged bank deposits EIRARITER 22(b) 43,500 43,517
Cash and cash equivalents HEPERELER 26 102,445 24,628
235,509 162,014
Total assets HwEE 675,666 543,073
EQUITY g
Equity attributable to equity holders #FXATFBIEEAEGLIES
of the Company
Share capital B AR 27 112,661 98,209
Share premium B An R E 27 126,733 =
Reserves e 28(a) 350,842 314,477
Shareholders’ funds BRES 590,236 412,686
Non-controlling interests IR FE (3,147) 2,434
Total equity HER 587,089 415,120

The notes on pages 47 to 173 are an integral part of these FBATET3E 2T RN GRENBERRZE
consolidated financial statements. A
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

o A E=
mEEERER
R=F——F=H=+—H As at 31st March 2011

2011 2010
—2——% —E-2F
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
BtaE F#EiT FET
LIABILITIES afR
Non-current liabilities EREBAR
Borrowings BE 30(a) 6,235 19,721
Obligations under finance leases S A AR 30(b) 252 -
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTEHEE 31 16,789 11,052
23,276 30,773
Current liabilities nE&R
Trade and other payables B o R HMEMARE 29 49,408 68,718
Borrowings BE 30(a) 5,381 19,950
Obligations under finance leases il & A 40 R 30(b) 755 3,023
Current income tax liabilities BEAFr SR aE 9,757 5,489
65,301 97,180
Total liabilities HaR 88,577 127,953
Total equity and liabilities HERREAR 675,666 543,073
Net current assets RDRESH 170,208 64,834
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERTEDAES 610,365 445,893
The notes on pages 47 to 173 are an integral part of these FBATEI3EZMA ARG EMBRR ZE
consolidated financial statements. BEIRD o
The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 173 FEIBETIEZGEUBBRRA—ZT——F
were approved by the Board of Directors on 29th June 2011 ARAZThBEZEESHE  WRESSE -
and were signed on its behalf.
Director Director
EE =E
Li Kuo Hsing Tong Hing Chi
FER BE#&
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

BALANCE SHEET
BERER

As at 31st March 2011 R =ZE——F=H=+—H

2011 2010
—ZE——%f —E-ZF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Brat FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries B AR 2 s 20 470,661 331,641
Current assets mEEE
Prepayments and other receivables FEASRRIE R H A R IR 337 837
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERKEEEE 26 14 10
351 847
Total assets wEE 471,012 332,488
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to equity holders Z#XTFESEEARGIESR
of the Company
Share capital [N 27 112,661 98,209
Share premium IR 12 =18 27 126,733 —
Reserves i 28(b) 231,321 233,546
Total equity HES 470,715 331,755
LIABILITIES afR
Current liabilities nE&ER
Other payables H A e TR IE 297 733
Total liabilities HaER 297 733
Total equity and liabilities HERREAR 471,012 332,488
Net current assets REEERE 54 114
Total assets less current liabilities HREERARDRAR 470,715 331,755
The notes on pages 47 to 173 are an integral part of these FATZ1T3E 2T ARG M B RR 2 &
consolidated financial statements. B o
The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 173 FIBENTIERZHREUBBRERA=ZE——F
were approved by the Board of Directors on 29th June 2011 AEZThBEZESSHE  RESE -
and were signed on its behalf.
Director Director
EE EE
Li Kuo Hsing Tong Hing Chi
FER EEH
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREnSBR

B Z—ZF——4%# = =+—HI-FZ For the year ended 31st March 2011

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FLATRERAARNK
Available-
for-sale
financial
assets  (Accumulated
Share Buildings ~ revaluation losses)/
redemption revaluation reserve retained Non-
Share Share reserve  Contributed Exchange reserve iHE earnings controlling Total
capital premium ki surplus— difference BEEf HEEE (£HER) interests equity
i RfER el BB EfzH 1] EilE  /RERW  FnkE #is

HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000
Tér T 7 T TEr 7.3 7&r f&r 7&r 71

Balance at 1st April 2009 —S20EMA-R
b4 -] 98,209 167,569 12 107,099 (819 14,367 15,756 (64,767) 265 337,681
Comprehensive income 2k
Proft for the year Enils - - - - - - - 51,065 243 52,208
Other comprehensive income/  Efi2EhE /(5H)
(loss)
Deficit on revaluation of buldings B E(AE4
(note 14(6) (1) - - - - - (.419) - - - (419
Deforred taxation arising flom R E(EHES ZEL
tevaluation defict of buidings Figihs1)
fote31) - - - - - 0 - - - %
Fair value gains on avalable-for-  FJfE EBHEEZ DT
sale financial assets (note 23f8) ~ ER&(HE298) - - - - - - 26,906 - - 26,906
Currency translation differences ~ ApEEEEE - - - - (1,582) - - - (17 (1,599)
Total other comprehensive Af2EkREE
income - - - - (158 2019 %306 - (i 2,268
Total comprehensive income 2K EEH - - - - (1,562) 2019 26,906 51,965 26 75,49
Transactions with owners BHRALER
Transfer from share premium ERERMEE
fote 280} (z28000) - e - 81910 - - - 85,650 - -
Capital injection from RUFHELAEE
non-controling interests FERER
arising from incorporation of HE
anew subsidiary - - - - - - - - 1,043 1943
Total transactions with owners ~ EHEAZZAEH - (167,569) - 81,010 - - - 85,659 1,043 1943
Balance at 31st March 2010 H-E-T%28
St-Big 98,209 - 12 189,009 (2.401) 12,338 42,662 72,857 2,434 415,120
The notes on pages 47 to 173 are an integral part of these BATEITBEZMEARRGEMHHRR 2 E
consolidated financial statements. EE o o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

o A S 32 4=
meERZER
For the year ended 31st March 2011 B2 —F——4#=H=+—HI-FZF

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FLTREREARNK
Available-
for-sale
financial
assets
Share Buildings ~ revaluation
redemption revaluation reserve Non-
Share Share reserve  Contributed Exchange reserve e Retained controlling Total
capital premium & surplus difference BFEN HhRE eamnings interests equity
k& RiER RE&H LIS ERER 1] {1 ] RERH  FHRER #he

HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000
&L TEr fr Tér TEr f&r 7&r T&r &1 TEn

Balance at st April 2010, —E-35MA-RY

as per above €8 nExFd 98,209 - 12 189,009 (2.401) 12,338 42,662 72,857 2,434 415,120
Comprehensive income 2iks
Profi forthe year EhilE - - - - - - - 55,000 (6,536] 4B 44
Other comprehensive income/  Efi2 kS /(FH)

(loss)
Surplus on revaluation of buidings ~ BE(t2%

(ote 14f) (W 1) - s s - - 47% - - - 47%
Deferred tavation arising from B EFRHEL ZEL

revaluation surplus of buildings ~~ HE(#91)

(1ot 31 - - - - - ) - - - )
Fair value losses on avalable-for- I ERKEEZAT

sale financial assets (note 235~ EFE(H2295) - - - - = = (17,33) = - (17,339)
Release upon disposal of avalable-  HETHHERHEEE

for-sale financial assets (note BEWE29)

20 - - - . - - 1059 - - 1059
Impaiment loss on avallable-for- it EEHERRES

sale financial assets (note 23 B(#236)) - - - - - - 1,261 - - 1,261
Curtency translaton differences  NEEEER - - - - 491 - - - (o 397
Total other comprehensive Af2ERREE

incame - - - - 1 401 23121 - (Y
Total comprehensive income 2 EHAEH - - - - 491 4001 (23,127) 55,000 (6,650) 29,715
Transactions with owners BRAALER

Capital injection from share EERfEE

placement (note 27(b)) (Won) 14,452 126,733 = = = = = = - 141,185
Captal injection from non- FERERTE
controlling interests - - - - - - - - 1,069 1,069

Total transactions with owners ~ EfFAZ%5EH 1445 126,733 - - - - - - 1,069 142,254

Balance at 31st March 2011 i

St-Rig 112,661 126,733 12 189,009 (1.910) 16,339 19,585 127,857 (3,147) 587,089
The notes on pages 47 to 173 are an integral part of these FATZI3EHZHME RN REUBERRZE
consolidated financial statements. 2EpD ©
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HmEESRER

B2 —ZF——14F = J=+—HI-F/Z For the year ended 31st March 2011

2011 2010
—E——% —E-EF
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
BtaE FHET FET
Cash flows from operating activities #EZSEHZHEREE
Cash generated from operations EEMBES 32(a) 71,929 73,943
Income tax (paid)/refund (B, BEREFFEH (1,764) 14
Net cash generated from operating REXKMBES
activities R 70,165 73,957
Cash flows from investing activities #EEFEHZHE&TE
Purchase of leasehold land and land BEHE TR b
use rights i FRE 13 - (20,634)
Purchase of property, plant and IBEYXE  HERRE
equipment (4,886) (10,568)
Purchase of investment properties BEREWE 16 (170) (17,133)
Purchase of film rights, films in BEERE - JBES
progress and film royalty deposits EEREZHREZS 17 (103,534) (53,388)
Repayment from an associated B N RER
company 18(c) - 1,780
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHEENKEE
financial assets 23(a) (1,943) —
Proceeds from disposal of available- HEAHEENKEE
for-sale financial assets Z T8 RIE 23(a) 7,600 -
Interest received 2 WFE 8 638 1,405
Net cash used in investing activities  REEE AR S FEE (102,295) (98,538)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEFEBZHE&TE
Net proceeds from issuance of MEERMBITEBRZ
ordinary shares in relation to share P8 TR F 58
placement 27(b) 141,185 -
Repayment of convertible notes BEMBRREE - (20,000)
Interest paid on convertible notes SRR EERE - (1,614)
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITIEE Z TS IE 32(b) - 23,384
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITEE 32(b) (25,808) (6,808)
Interests paid on loans and overdrafts B EFNEZFE 8 (652) (938)
Repayment of capital element of EERMERN 2 ERED
finance leases 32(b) (3,526) (3,677)
Interest element of finance leases RIERY 2R 2D 8 (169) (287)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BIEBEZRD,(HEhn)
deposit 22(b) 17 17)
Capital injection from non-controlling FEREREE
interests 1,069 1,943
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBE(FTA)RE
financing activities FRE 112,116 (8,014)
The notes on pages 47 to 173 are an integral part of these FATENT3EZMT ARG ENBRRZE
consolidated financial statements. L azibal
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mEEERER

For the year ended 31st March 2011 B2 —F——4#=H=+—HI-FZF

2011 2010
—=——5 —E-EF
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
HtaE FET FET
Net increase/(decrease) incashand HR&REFRHE&EE
cash equivalents |/in (R )RR 79,986 (32,595)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#HZHRE R EFREIEH
of the year 17,533 50,233
Exchange differences B H =% 403 (105)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FEZH&RERHE&EEH
the year 97,922 17,533
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRERARELEAZ
cash equivalents EESM
Cash at bank, on hand and short-term $R{TRFERES LUK EH
bank deposits RITER 26 102,445 24,628
Bank overdrafts RITEX 30 (4,523) (7,095)
97,922 17,533

X

The notes on pages 47 to 173 are an integral part of these FATEN3EZMT AR RENBRRZE
consolidated financial statements. g o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in television operations, film exhibition, film
rights licensing and sub-licensing, sale and distribution
of films and programs in audio visual product format and

artiste management.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 29th
June 2011.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

e SRR MY R

—RE#

ELHE o “éﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁ"T(M‘ al)
REKMBAR(RBE AKEH ) EERSE
ERER  EXHM - EXMERER
BE USTERPEAHERRTZE
TRER  URBAERE -

AARIIRBEBRETMRIZBERA
7 o M= 2 ik & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM

11, Bermuda °

ARAREBBERZMERQA L
7 o

MREBHBPN NGRSV BRERAB T
(BT 2% - RNraMBHRKRELH
EEgR 2 ——F~A-t+hAHE
H % -

EEEHBREE
BREGSUBBRRFAZEIEEHE

RERTX - REEHANS  KERE
B2 2BFENERER -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of buildings, investment properties, available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair

value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in

note 4.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group
The following new standards and amendments
to standards are mandatory for the first time

for the financial year beginning 1st April 2010.

° HKAS 27 (Revised) specifies the
accounting when the control of a
previous subsidiary is lost. Any remaining
interest in the entity is re-measured to
fair value and the resulting gain or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

The revised standard was applied to the
disposal of the controlling interest in a
subsidiary during the year. The remaining
interest in the entity was re-measured
to a fair value and accounted for as an
investment in an associated company
on the date when the Group’s control
ceased. Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
of HK$3,265,000 has been recognised in
the consolidated income statement (note
6). Prior to this revision, the remaining
interest in an associated company was

recognised at cost.

e SRR MY R

BEIREEE @)

SRR

(a) FEBMENZHITREELT
E L)
THIET T A R \sza}a
BER-B—BFEMA—

Bt 2 B R EEIRERAR -

e EBETERE27TH
(RABET) B8R 2% 5 A B
BAREHIES g5t
BERE - RAEEE
Rz FerERIZ A TE
B E YEAEK
mRPEIRERE o

RIETTEBI A F R FE
AZHERKE A A
ZERER NEE

FpERRAEEAE
EHRERRATEE
FERUBE AT Z
REAR - HEWBQ
7 2 W % 3,265,000 &
TERFRERBERER
(MiZE6) o fEHI BT
Al AEE AT 2 gk
RERARNERER
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group (Continued)

° HKAS 27 (Revised) specifies that total
comprehensive income is attributed to
the owners of the parent and to non-
controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. Prior to this revision,
non-controlling interests will only share
losses up to the non-controlling interests
in the subsidiary’s equity, except when
the non-controlling interests has a
binding obligation and is able to make an

additional investment to cover the losses.

This revised standard has been applied
beginning 1st April 2010 in accordance
with the effective date and transitional
provisions of the revision. The effect of

the adoption of this revision is as below:

2 BEESHRREE®

21 WEEEAE)
(a) ZREFNZHEITREEET

ER(E)

e EBEBEFERE27H
(RAEFT) S 2 E W as
REFBREARESR
AR RS - B
BRI ERER 2
BRI BB AL o fEHLLE
ATAD FERERES
BAEL R M 88 A =) AR P
IR ERER AR D E
B8 HEFERERS
BENRDZERE X
REMEHHBESMRE LT
&R RIERI® o

LIREETER T RIE
ZET 2EM BB RB
BHERXR-F—FF
MA—BRRER - &
MZIERT 28T ¢

For the year ended
31st March 2011

BE—ZE2—%F
=A=+—HLEE
HK$’000
FET
Increase in loss for the year attributable ZE2% I # 25 & R FE(L
to non-controlling interests E5 R 1L hn 6,799
Decrease in non-controlling interests BRI (6,799)
Increase in basic earnings per share AARERIFEAEBLER
attributable to equity holders of the E AR R hn (GBAL)
Company (HK cents) 0.12
Increase in diluted earnings per share AR AERIETE AEEERKR
attributable to equity holders of the #E 2 A A (EAL)
Company (HK cents) 0.12
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

Change in presentation on distribution
commission income

During the year ended 31st March 2011, the
Group changed its presentation on distribution
commission income which was previously
included in other income in the consolidated
income statement. Subsequent to the change
in presentation, distribution commission
income of HK$4,704,000 (2010: HK$3,731,000)
was included in revenue in the consolidated

income statement.

Management believes that the change in
presentation results in providing a more
appropriate presentation of financial
information of the Group as the royalty rights
distribution service has become one of the
ordinary course of business activities of the
Group. The change in presentation has been
accounted for retrospectively and the revenue,
other income and segment revenue in the
consolidated financial statements have been

restated in prior year.

There was no impact on profit for the year
and earnings per share for year ended 31st
March 2011 and 2010. Prior year consolidated
balance sheets were not affected by this
reclassification of items and hence the
consolidated balance sheet as at 1st April

2009 was not presented.

e SRR MY R

2 BEESHRREE®

21 REEEHE)

(b)

DHHLKAZINTHZ
25
RBE-ZFZ——-F=A8
=S+—BLEFEE r&EEE
FHRHEASBAZZS
FR DEASWAZER
mERBmRPITAHMEY
A BIAXNBER > 5
& A 4,704,000 T (=
T—F & 3,731,000 7T)
RERERERPET AW o

EEEAGE  HARED
REERATEBREER

— WMEJNFXEEFER
EEZHBERRAEEGEZ
FRES - 2HFREELD
BEWNER MBEFEZ
mEMBREkPzlE - H
U AR D EB U EEE S o

HEHEEZE—ZE——FR=-2F
—ZF=A=1+—HLEE
ZERFER SR E AL &
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EEAERIBTIHEIER
EFOBEMEE AEIE
2IR=—_ZTAFNA—A
ZIREEEBBR -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New and amended standards, and
interpretations mandatory for the first time
for the financial year beginning 1st April
2010 but not currently relevant to the Group
(although they may affect the accounting

for future transactions and events)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)  Classification of Rights Issues

HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Eligible Hedged ltems

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)  Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of HKFRSs

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Group Cash-settled Share-based

Payment Transactions
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
HK(IFRIC)— Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners
HK(IFRIC)— Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
HK-Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements

— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a

Repayment on Demand Clause

HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

Conceptual Framework  Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2010
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR R MR

2 BEESHRREE®

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REREE)

(dd New standards, amendments and (d EEBER-—ZF—ZFFMA
interpretations have been issued but are not —HRABZH R EEREKE
effective for the financial year beginning 1st WHEEBRFIEEFNZ
April 2010 and have not been early adopted FTER - ESTRETE

by the Group

HKAS 12 (Amendment)  Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying BASERE 125 BLHE : kR
Assets (fBFTK) HEEE
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures BASTEREUSE FREALEE
(55T)
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements BFRETEAETE BUNBHRE
(Z3—-%)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint BASTENF 28 RELATRA
Ventures (Z%3—-%) ERAZRE
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)  Limited Exemption from Comparative BENBASEN BAEMERA
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time EALACHEN RREBEHE
Adopters BEEAET
SRENEE
A2 EREAE
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)  Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of BANBREREN REEHERR
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters Z1 (BT K) HIRE RS
EVEERS
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)  Disclosures — Transfers of Financial BEUHREEN KE - EBEE
Assets ETHBITX) I8
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments EROEREEY  HEIA
Fo%
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Financial BENBREEL HEIA - BE
Liabilities 9% &
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements BREUBREEL GEUMEER
1055
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements RENBREEN HEZH
E115
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other BENBREEL KENHMER
Entities F12% 2
HKFRS 13 Fair Vialue Measurement BAMKREREL AVEHE
E135%
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding BE(ERNERE HEELERZ
(Amendment) Requirement RBZEE) - A
REE 145 (13T
x)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with F8(ERIHRE URAIAEE
Equity Instruments REZEE) - BKEE
REE195
HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 ERNBREEN —Z-TEEA
BIRREER
2k

The Group is in the process of assessing
the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not
yet in a position to state whether these new
HKFRSs would have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

REBEEFGLERER
MBRELENZE R
REELEHEBMBRE
HAERHAEBE 2GS Y
BHERBREATE -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

(a

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are de-consolidated from the

date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method
of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. On
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of

the acquiree’s net assets.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted
to reflect changes in consideration arising
from contingent consideration amendments.
Cost also includes direct attributable costs of

investment.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
If this is

less than the fair value of the net assets of the

acquired is recorded as goodwill.

subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the consolidated income statement (note
2.7).

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 2.2 #HFEEBAE)

HFRREDETZXS

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests (b)

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. For purchases from non-
controlling interests, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests

are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair
value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associated company, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associated
company is reduced but significant influence
is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss where appropriate.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over
which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associated
companies are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investment in associated companies includes
goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any

accumulated impairment loss.

The Group’s share of its associated
companies’ post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associated company equals
or exceeds its interest in the associated
company, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associated company.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 2.2 #HFEEBAE)

(c)

(d)

Associated companies (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associated companies
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associated companies.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associated companies
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments
in associated companies are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

Joint ventures

(i)  Jointly controlled entities
Jointly controlled entities are joint
ventures in respect of which contracted

arrangements are established between

(c)

(d)

WELE(E)
AEHHEABENT ZEBR
GRABBPHZAEER
fENA B CBEY
HoRIRZREMERE
EREZRE  BRIKRER
BRI TUHE BEQTF
ZETHERCERFTEFER
% DRREXAEERRZ
HREB—2 -

RBERA2REEE2H
HBERGEWAERER -

H? %‘JE%‘T.’?/,\I:
BRI LENTHY
Rz&&g0na it

the participating venturers and whereby AEBEREGERET
the Group together with the venturers FHEES 2 KEEE
undertake an economic activity which is REeELIBITBERA
subject to join control and none of the 2R o
venturers has unilateral control over the

economic activity.

The Group’s interest in a jointly controlled AEBRLRZEHEE
entity is accounted for using the equity S UERETEA
method of accounting. iR o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(d) Joint ventures (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Equity method of accounting is
discontinued from the date on which the
Group ceases to have joint control over,
or have significant influence in, a jointly
controlled entity. When the carrying
amount of the investment in a jointly
controlled entity reaches zero, equity
method of accounting is discontinued
unless the Group has incurred obligations
or guaranteed obligations in respect of

the jointly controlled entity.

Jointly controlled operations

Joint venture arrangements which involve
the use of assets and other resources
of the Group and other parties, without
the establishment of a separate entity,
are referred to as jointly-controlled
operations. Under these arrangements,
assets remain under the ownership and
control of each party. Revenue and
expenses derived or incurred in common
are shared by the parties according to

the contractual arrangement.

Assets that the Group controls and the
liabilities that the Group incurs in relation
to the jointly controlled operation are
recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet on an accrual basis and classified
according to the nature of the item. The
expenses that the Group incurs and its
share of income that it earns from the
jointly controlled operation are included

in the consolidated income statement.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

ERRYENEEBRA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as
the Executive Directors of the Group that makes

strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HKS$,
which is the Company’s functional and the

Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

BTRURERE (2

nm
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HE®
policies (Continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.4 HMEME(E)

(b) XHREEE)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities

classified as available-for-sale are included in

FEBMBEEREE (MR
DFEFABERZBRAT
R zBEEZHENEBRmRER
ARAFEBEZ A7 F
ER¥MHEE (W BATH
HEzERS) 2 REEETA
H b 2 Wi 2 7] S

other comprehensive income. B e
(c) Group companies (c) HFELE
The results and financial position of all the WEEEMEHETER-RE 2

group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance

FrEEBER(ERRERE
BIREBE 2EW) 2 £ B R
BRRIBEUTERNBRESE

IIEH -

() BOR2IZEEREX

sheet presented are translated at the NEERBGRZE
closing rate at the date of that balance EEEXRAHZWHE
sheet; g

(i) income and expenses for each income

(i) BOHWRBERAZWZE

statement are translated at average FHYERBEBRIFEL
exchange rates (unless this average is FHERWIER S AE

not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions);

and

(iiiy all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.4 SMImE(E)

(c) Group companies (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign operations and of borrowings are
taken to other comprehensive income. When
a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded
in equity are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss

on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity

and translated at the closing rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly offices. Buildings are
recorded at fair value, based on periodic, but at
least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated
to the revalued amount of the asset. All other
property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR R MR

2 BEESHRREE®

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 25 ME - BBREMHGE)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are credited to other
comprehensive income. However, the increase
shall be recognised in the consolidated income
statement to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Decreases
that offset previous increases of the same asset are
charged against other comprehensive income; all
other decreases are charged to the consolidated

income statement.

Construction in progress refers to the leasehold
improvements where the construction works have
not been completed, and is carried at cost which
includes development and construction expenditure
incurred, and other direct costs attributable to the
construction works. When the construction work
has been completed, the expenditure is transferred
to leasehold improvements. No depreciation is

provided on construction in progress.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost or revalued amounts to their residual values

over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings Over the remaining term of the
lease, or 50 years, whichever is
shorter

Leasehold improvements ~ 10% or lease term, whichever is the

shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 15% to 25%
equipment
Motor vehicles 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals and determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in buildings revaluation reserve in

reserves are transferred to retained earnings.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6

Investment properties

Investment property is defined as property (land or a
building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease)
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both,
rather than for: (a) use in the production of supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes;

or (b) sale in the ordinary course of business.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,

including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined annually by external valuers. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset. If this information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices from less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. These
valuations are reviewed annually by external valuers
with changes in fair values are recorded in the

consolidated income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they

are incurred.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment,
and its fair value at the date of reclassification

becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because its use
has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item
at the date of transfer is recognised in equity as
a revaluation of property, plant and equipment.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of

goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose

identified according to operating segment.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

Contractual supplier relationships

Contractual supplier relationships acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The contractual
supplier relations have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the
expected life of the supplier relationships, and
recorded in the administrative expenses in the

consolidated financial statements.

2.8 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits

(a)

Film rights

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Upon
the release of the pre-recorded audio visual
products and the materials, film rights are
amortised at rates calculated to write off the
costs in proportion to the expected revenues
from exhibition, reproduction and distribution
of audio visual products, the licensing of video
rights and other broadcast rights following
their release. Such rates are on a systematic
basis, with reference to the projected revenue
and the underlying licence periods, and are

subject to annual review by the directors.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Costs include
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. Provisions are made for costs which
are in excess of the expected future revenue
generated by these films. The balance of film
production costs not yet due at year end are
disclosed as commitments. Costs of films are

transferred to film rights upon completion.

Film royalty deposits

Licence fees paid in advance and by
installments under licensing agreements
for distribution of audio visual products
and sub-licensing of film titles, in specified
geographical areas and time periods, are
accounted for as film royalty deposits. Film
royalty deposits are recognised when payment
was made and the balance payable under
the licensing agreements is disclosed as a
commitment. Upon receipt of the audio visual
products and the materials, the deposits
would be transferred to film rights and the
remaining payable balances will be recorded
as a liability. Provision for impairment loss is
made against deposits to the extent that film
rights will not be received and the deposit is

not recoverable in the future.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)
2.8 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty 28 EXNRE ERIOEXRETCHE
deposits (Continued) wme(E)
(c) Film royalty deposits (Continued) (c) EFREERL (&
In case where the Group is unable to exercise MBS ERETHRE R U
its rights under a licensing agreement because BN 6 B R 0L 1T 5 hR AR 1R o
the film producer fails to complete the film, the BT 2 fEF - BIZS &R B i
Group writes off the difference between the B EB T EGT W
advances made and the estimated recoverable EHEE 2 E5E °

amount from the film producer.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal MEREHR  NEFHEZER
and external market information are considered BRIFz2HHER  LUFEHSE
to assess whether there is any indication that film EME BEPEZREERER
rights, films in progress and film royalty deposits E2AENREBERE o & H R
are impaired. If any such indication exists, the BE% > Mgt EREEZERE
carrying amount of such assets is assessed and & » WA EZREERE - U
where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised BEERZHE AU EZEE - BRI
to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. EEBRRERERER -

Such impairment losses are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associated companies and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries or associated companies is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary or associated company in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s

net assets including goodwill.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets

in the following categories: at fair

value through profit or loss,

loans and

receivables and available-for-sale. The

classification depends on the purpose

for which the financial assets were

acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at

initial recognition.

@

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current
assets, if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they

are classified as non-current.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.1
(b)

()

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 £ #§

Classification (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise “trade and other
receivables”, “amount due from an
associated company”, “pledged
bank deposits” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated

balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management
intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting

period.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.2

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss” category
are presented in the consolidated income
statement, in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement when the Group’s right to

receive payments is established.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.2

Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-
for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the

consolidated income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement when the Group’s right to

receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are
based on current bid prices. Available-
for-sale financial assets that were
not quoted in an active market were

measured at cost less impairment.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets

(a

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that

can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine
that there is objective evidence of an

impairment loss include:

o Significant financial difficulty of the issuer

or obligor;

° A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, granting to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not

otherwise consider;

It becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

The disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of

financial difficulties; or

Observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio
of financial assets since the initial
recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified
with the individual financial assets in the

portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment

status of borrowers in the portfolio;

(i) national or local economic
conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the

portfolio.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR R MR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)
2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

2.1 RBREZREE)
(a) REBEREIIEEEE(E)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective

evidence of impairment exists.

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair

value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in

the consolidated income statement.

Impairment testing of trade and other

receivables is described in note 2.13.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)
2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 211 MBBEZRE(F

(b) FUEATHHEZRE

(b) Assets carried as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the group uses the criteria refer to
(a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the consolidated income
statement, the impairment loss is reversed

through the consolidated income statement.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current

assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current

liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.16

2.17

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If

not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after

the end of the reporting period.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax 2.18 BDHA K iE FEFR 15 R

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, its subsidiaries, associated
companies and jointly controlled entity operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income

tax liability is settled.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associated companies and a jointly controlled
entity, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention

to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits

Group companies operate various pension
schemes. The Group has a mandatory provident
fund scheme and another defined contribution
plan. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service

in the current and prior periods.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19

2.20

Employee benefits (Continued)

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on
a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction

in the future payments is available.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating

losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised

as interest expense.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

2.21

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be

measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will

then be recognised as a provision.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of returns
and discounts and after eliminating sales within the

Group.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR R MR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued) 221 Wt (&)

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity and when specific criteria have been met
for each of the Group’s activities as described
below. The amount of revenue is not considered
to be reliably measurable until all contingencies
relating to the sale have been resolved. The Group
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@) Revenues from television operations mainly
comprise channel supply revenues. Channel
supply revenue is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the contract periods which generally
coincide with when the relevant channels are

broadcasted.

(b) Film exhibition income is recognised when the

right to receive payment is established.

() Income from the licensing and sub-licensing
of audio visual products, video features and
TV rights is recognised upon delivery of the
pre-recorded audio visual products and the
materials for video features including the
master tapes to the customers in accordance

with the terms of the contracts.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d)

Revenue from the sale and distribution of films
and programs in audio visual product format is
recognised on the transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to

customers and the title has passed.

Distribution commission income from royalty

rights is recognised on an accrual basis.

Revenue from the provision of artiste
management services is recognised when

services are rendered.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line

basis over the period of the lease.

Management fee income is recognised when

services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method, taking into account
the principal amounts outstanding and the

interest rates applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right

to receive payment is established.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.22 Leases

(i)

The Group as the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the

lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum

lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in other long-term payables. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged
to the consolidated income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter
of the useful life of the asset and the lease

term.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)
2.22 Leases (Continued) 2.22 (&)
(i) The Group as the lessor (i) FXEEBHEA
A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor MR —HE > BIHEA
conveys to the lessee in return for a payment, A AFE A EZENHE -
or series of payments, the right to use an AFEREEZER » UARB
asset for an agreed period of time. —EFIEY —EFRMRIE °
When assets are leased out under an operating EERBLEROBEHE -
lease, the asset is included in the consolidated EEREEMETTAGRE
balance sheet based on the nature of the E8EX-
asset.
Lease income is recognised over the term of HEWAZBHUBEZLRE
the lease on a straight-line basis. B
2.23 Dividend distribution 2.23 R R IK
Dividend distribution to the Company’s EARAFREREDIKZBEERREE
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the AATRRMEZHEAREER
Group’s consolidated financial statements in the ZEEHBHRERATIAERE

period in which the dividends are approved by the

Company’s shareholders.

2.24 Financial guarantee contracts 2.24 BBEHFEH

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that S ERENRIERRAZTERE
require the issuer to make specified payments to EEEAREIRBERSNIKRAE
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a TERERER  ARFEEAENE
specified debtor fails to make payments when due, HENEEZIEEELSE -EH
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. MBERIINRME LD RARBE A
Such financial guarantees are given to banks, BEIRIT © BB HAE R H AR
financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of g AUEREER - B RHEAM
subsidiaries or associated companies to secure RITELE ©

loans, overdrafts and other banking facilities.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR R MR

2 BEESHRREE®

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Financial guarantee contracts (Continued) 2.24 MBREREH(E)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value on
the date the guarantee was given. The fair value
of a financial guarantee at the time of signature
is zero because all guarantees are agreed on
arm’s length terms and the value of the premium
agreed corresponds to the value of the guarantee
obligation. No receivable for the future premiums
is recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Company’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the initial amount,
less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance
with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the guarantee. These
estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by the judgement of management.
The fee income earned is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any
increase in the liability relating to guarantees is

reported in the consolidated income statement.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”),
Singapore and Japan and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”),
Singapore dollars (“SGD”) and Japanese
Yen (“JPY?”). Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency of the individual
group companies and net investments in

foreign operations.

The Group has certain investments in
foreign operations whose net assets
are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk primarily with respect
to JPY. Currency exposure arising
from the net assets of the Group’s
operations is managed primarily through
sourcing suppliers denominated in the
same foreign currencies. Management
considers the foreign currency exposure
with respect to JPY is not significant as
the functional currency of the respective

foreign operation is also JPY.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

3 HMERKRER#)

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Management considers the foreign
currency exposure with respect to SGD
is not significant as the channel licensing
revenue denominated in SGD has been

received in advance.

At 31st March 2011, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$465,000 (2010:
HK$586,000) higher/lower,

a result of foreign exchange gains/

mainly as

losses on translation of trade and other

receivables denominated in RMB.

The Group minimised its other foreign
exchange risk by denominating majority
of its foreign currency transactions in
United States dollars (“USD”), which is
pegged with HK$ at a designated range
such that the exposure on fluctuation of

foreign currency rate is limited.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because of investments held
by the Group and classified in the
consolidated balance sheet either as
available-for-sale financial assets or
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group is not exposed
to commodity price risk. To manage its
price risk arising from investments in
equity securities, the Group diversifies its

portfolio.

Majority of the Group’s equity securities
are publicly traded. At 31st March 2011,
if the share prices of the equity securities
of the Group had increased/decreased
by 5%, the pre-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$2,555,000 (2010:
HK$2,506,000) higher/lower and the
equity of the Group would have been
HK$3,660,000 (2010: HK$4,760,000)

higher/lower, respectively.

Pre-tax profit for the year would increase/
decrease as a result of gains/losses
on equity securities classified as at fair
value through profit or loss. The gains/
losses on equity securities classified
as available-for-sale would increase/
decrease the available-for-sale financial

assets revaluation reserve within equity.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 £ #§

3 HMERKRER#)
HERBER (&)
(a) FHEEE(E)

3.1

(i)

115 m B
HRAEESERE
TRGEEERBERD
BRUHHENBEE
FRAFEFABRER
ZHBEE  MAKHE
AERAFZEERE
B o AEEIEAZE
mERER HEEH
BARZREEEZE
KER > RNEBEZER
BHAZ T -

AEBAD S B AFH
Z——F=/A=+—
B MAEEREE
SeBRELA T
B5% - Bl A & @ A
FE 2 BB AR
#4n,/ 2 2,555,000
s i(:g—%i:
2,506,000 7T ) -

rEBZER KD J
# 1,/ 8% 2> 3,660,000
BRT(ZE—-FF:
4,760,00038 7T) °

FRBRBAFEEE D
BRELFESARS
RZBRAFS KR
BmEM HD o 58
RAEHE 2 RAE S
s B EASIE N,
DAz w &R
BEEE A -



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

3 HMERRER#)
HERBERZ)

(a) FEmEE ()

B2 BRAFERE

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Cash flow interest rate risk (iii)

The Group has cash balances placed with
reputable banks and financial institutions,
which generate interest income for the
Group. The Group manages its interest
rate risk by placing such balances in
these institutions with various maturities

and interest rate terms.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash held at
variable rates. Details of the Group’s
borrowings have been disclosed in note
30(a).

At 31st March 2011, if the interest rate
had been 50 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit for the year would have
been HK$672,000 (2010: HK$142,000)

higher/lower.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMBERARER#)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBRKRERGE)
(b) Credit risk (b) EEmE

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit FERAREREERE -FERA
risk arises from cash and cash equivalents BRERERERRSEE N
as well as credit exposures to customers, REFREMEBEEAZEE
including outstanding receivables and [ELB (B2 38 AR UK B FE WSk 1B
committed transactions, and other debtors. BRERS)EE - AEEHE
The Group only places deposits in reputable B ERERR A A RIT R
banks and financial institutions and manages BHE WEBREREES
its credit risk associated with trade receivables #  EETRREREFE
through the application of credit approvals, BHEZ S EWRIEHEEZ
credit ratings and monitoring procedures. EERK mMEMEKAZ
Advances to other debtors will only be made ARECDEEBEEEELR
to those with appropriate credit histories. EELH o

Credit sales are only made to customers AEEEOREEEECELR
with appropriate credit history or high credit BRARHEERR2BEFE
standing while sales to new customers or TEEHE MEHEFN
customers of low credit standing are usually SERRBRECEFETZ
made on cash on delivery basis. Provision for HE —MIDUEZFE
impairment of receivables will be made in light HEEE - EWIERER
of existing evidence of uncollectibility. BRRBRAE T AWE M2

FEEL o

(c) Liquidity risk (c) REIELEEE

Prudent liquidity risk management implies ZERDESRKEERRK
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable ZERFEENREREERE
securities, the availability of funding from an 5 -BEEHACEALEER
adequate amount of committed credit facilities ERERM2ESRBRED
and the ability to close out market positions. HMEERETFER -BHR
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying BERXKzZE8HEE  EE
businesses, management maintains flexibility BERBESCALEEERE
in funding by maintaining availability under HEERES  UERFES
committed credit lines. T|EM o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

3 HMERRERZ)

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MEBERKRER(Z
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REIELELE(E)
Surplus cash held by the operating entities REBRBBEEBBRBEEER
over and above balance requires for working SEEMEESBRTE

capital management are transferred to the
Group treasury. Group treasury invests surplus
cash in interest bearing current accounts,
time deposits, choosing instruments with
appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity
to provide sufficient headroom as determined
by the Group. At 31st March 2011, the
Group held cash and cash equivalents of
HK$102,445,000 (2010: HK$24,628,000),
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$51,095,000 (2010: HK$50,124,000)
and other current assets of HK$38,469,000
(2010: HK$43,745,000) that are expected to
readily generate cash inflows for managing

liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

AKBE B - K@K
ERREBHRVENTEE
RERF - EEfFR 0 UEE
BEFH2IARZZR
HES REZEZRER
LERAEERE - R=F
——®=A=+—H0 'K
EERERERERES
1H H 102,445,000 (=
T — T § :24,628,000%
) BAFEFABERE
2 B % & E 51,095,000 7 7T
(=2 — & £ : 50,124,000
BT )RAMRE EE
38,469,000 T( =T — &
fF 1 43,745,000 T ) &
HAELEEBERSARANE
BREESRAR -

TREREERARAZ
FUTEMBRERRERZ
FEAR  RBERSERZR
BHIHMA 2 RARHBET
o RARBZEEAS
WARBRZRERE -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS ERAR MY R

3 HMERKRER#)

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

m ANNUAL REPORT 2011 £ #§

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMEBEREERE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEBELEEE (&)
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years
—&£R —EmWF MERF RFERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T T FET
Group FEE
At 31st March 2011 RHZ=FT——%F
=A=+-—H
Trade and other B REMER
payables IR 4,056 - - —
Obligations under R E A AN
finance leases 797 265 — =
Borrowings (ER=1 5,821 1,298 3,894 2,271
At 31st March 2010 WZ=Z—FF
=A=+-—H
Trade and other B REAMMEN
payables KB 14,790 - — -
Obligations under R E A AN
finance leases 3,164 — — —
Borrowings (ER=i 21,016 3,318 9,442 9,811




MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR R MR

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERRERZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBRKRERGE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBELEEE(E)
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years
—FR —EmF MERLF RERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FEx
Company . /N
At 31st March 2011 RZ-Z——%F
=BR=+—H
Other payables H b e FRIE 66 — — —
At 31st March 2010 R-T—FF
=B=+—H
Other payables HihpEFRIE 58 = = =
3.2 Capital risk management 32 BEXRREER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to the shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or convertible notes and derivative

financial instruments, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided

by shareholders’ funds.

FEBEREAZBERARELRLE
EEFEEEzZRN  UARRE
o R & 2 H A s AE B B R A
a0 WRFERZEARRBELURD

REFNARELRER - AEEH
SRBEARRG ZREHE - [
RREBE - RTHBROHTRER
BROUTEMBETAR  RHEEEN
W& o

REMERNRT - AEEUE
BEELRERER o I RBUE
BRBERUBRRESTTE -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group’s strategy was to maintain the gearing

ratio below 20%. The gearing ratios at 31st March

2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Bank loans and overdrafts
(note 30(a))

Obligations under finance leases
(note 30(b))

Total borrowings

Shareholders’ funds

Gearing ratio

RITERREX
(Kt&E30(a))
B RIE
(Ktz£ 30(b))

BEEELR

The decrease in the gearing ratio during the year

ended 31st March 2011 was mainly due to the

repayment of bank loans.

m ANNUAL REPORT 2011 £ #§

MERREEER#)

3.2 WHRMRERA)
AEEZEMBEEEEEANL R
KR20% - A=ZE——FR=-F
—EE-A=+-AEEEER
ZMT

2011 2010
—g—% —T-%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
11,616 39,671
1,007 3,023
12,623 42,694
590,236 412,686
21% 10.3%

BE-2——F=A=+-
BLFEZEEEELER
SHEERRERETER
Fi%K ©



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

3 MERBEEE#)

AT R

TRUGELT ESMRAFETE
ZUBITER  FEASRZEEN
different levels have been defined as follows: T

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3
The table below analyses financial instruments

carried at fair value, by valuation method. The

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)

or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

s RFREEHREEEERMS
L2 HREORERR) (5 —
&) o

o EEMEERBE EEED
BERITERE) ERARE R
PHREUNZTBREES
BEEE(EZ-R) -

(level 2).

FAFERITEETEEE
ZEEREERE (T TE
REE) (=) -

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not ©
based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets that TREJIR=-Z——FR=-F-F
are measured at fair value at 31st March 2011 and F=A=t—-HARAVEFEZSF
2010. EEEE
Level 1
E—R
2011 2010
—2——%F —E-BF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Assets gE
Financial assets at fair value through 22 FEsF AEBRER 2875
profit or loss EE
— Trading securities (note 23(b)) — R 5 REES (K7 23(b)) 51,095 50,124
Available-for-sale financial assets ARHENKERE
— Equity securities (note 23(a)) — BRAFE S (f13F 23(a)) 22,096 45,086
Total assets HaE 73,191 95,210
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

3 HMERKRERZ)
AFEEH(E)

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily
equity investments listed in Hong Kong, the United
States of America (“USA”) and the United Kingdom
of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (“UK”)

classified as trading securities or available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale financial assets that are not
quoted in an active market are measured at cost

less impairment.

The carrying values less provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables, amount due from an
associated company, cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits, trade and other payables,
borrowings and obligations under finance leases
approximate their fair values due to their short

maturities.
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Eo-MBEIEZHREHARS
fi-X58 8L T%&E &
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ET2ZWERS  AZWmSERRA
AR AREEEMBEERA
ZHEHREAERERE 2T
Bff A - -FAE-—R2IA
TEBEREB  XFABESRE
(M5B 1) & XA 5 B8 K 5 7R Bl Bt
SXIE(HREADLELHAEADEAR
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& o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

addressed below:

(@) Impairment of film rights, films in progress and
film royalty deposits
As set out in note 2.8, impairment assessments
on film rights, films in progress and film royalty
deposits are performed at the end of each
reporting period with reference to both internal
and external market information, for example,
sales forecast based on expected popularity of the
respective titles, the expected production, sales
and distribution costs to be reviewed to conclude
the sale, and the general economic condition of
the relevant markets. As at 31st March 2011, the
carrying value of film rights, films in progress, and
film royalty deposits amounted to HK$121,567,000
(2010: HK$74,198,000). Changes in assumptions
used in this assessment, including the forecasted
revenue, may result in additional provision being

made in the consolidated financial statements.

ra MR
4 WEEHEH RN

fEET RAHE TSR L WUBER
BRAMEZ(BREZBRATHEEAR
BEZRREMHER) BER -

AEEMBRAREHMGEARRBR - FEE
AHEFTMAEESR ROSEEBBRER
HE RAKEERTEVRFEZE
EREEZREBEFELEAR 2MES
RABRREMANT -

(a) EENE BRUEPEERECKE
meREE
UM 2.8 FTE - BEMME - B
HAEBEREFMERESIRER
EHMRSERNBRIAZTHE
R ETRERE  SINEREE
ERZEHRSEORE EHTA
HEREEZBE - HERBITR
7R R ABBE TS 2 — REEAR T
ZHERA -R=_T——F=A
=t+—B E¥mE - BEPE
EREZMERS2EREAENS
121,567,000 8 T(= & — = F :
74,198,000 7T ) © Lt FF & AT ER A
BEZ 2 (BEEIRS)RNEE
BERGRE M ERERPIEHEEIME
o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables

The provisioning policy for trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of the collectability of those receivables and on
management’s judgement. As at 31st March
2011,
provision, amounted to HK$29,258,000 (2010:
HK$36,794,000).

judgement is required in assessing the ultimate

the trade and other receivables, net of
A considerable amount of
realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer and the realisation of
any repayment pattern promised. If the financial
conditions of these debtors were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional provision for impairment may

be required.

Valuation of investment properties and buildings
The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar leases and other
contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair values estimated. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information
from the valuations of investment properties and
buildings performed by external professional valuers
by using the open market value approach. Had the
Group used different valuation techniques, the fair
value of the investment properties and buildings
would be different and thus may have an impact to

the consolidated financial statements.
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(b)

(c)
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FEBE HRHEMERRIE 2 RBE
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#29,258,000 8 T (=T —TF :
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of available-for-sale equity
investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39
to determine when an available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired. This determination requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; and the financial
health of and short-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and
sector performance, changes in technology and

operational and financing cash flow.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions
in which the Group operates. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination

is made.

4 HRE

(d)

(e)

e SRR M
EHhET R FIER (=)
THHERERREZAE

AEBERBEBSHEREI95
ZESIBEAHHERSTRER
&ﬁﬁﬁ%%°ﬁ@§mmﬁﬁi
RFVER o RIEHHIERR - ANEBFT
H2RAE(HTEE)FHRZY
BEEAFEHERERAZEE ;
&w&%ﬂﬁ$ﬁ2%ﬁﬁéﬁﬂ
SHEBRE - BRETERD X
B RIS LERELENBMERESR
EERE -

FRigi
REBEARAEEEEMEZAE
REMRFEN EEEREHE
BREEREANERE ZHE - R
AEXBBRETHESRE
RBBEZRZRE - AEERE
SRR RHESREINIRE G
MERENSEENRE 2RE -
ZEER 2 RARBEREAY D
ik AR AAEERSY
EFHEE 2 HE =z BN KR SE Fy
BHEEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

5 Revenue and segment information

Revenue
Television operations
Film exhibition and film rights licensing
and sub-licensing
Sale and distribution of films and
programs in audio visual product
format

Artiste management

Other income
Rental income from investment
properties
Other rental income
Management fee income
Others

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 £ #§

Y
BHREH
EXHREERRERERE
&
UEEEMPAEERRTZ

E-58:01=

it

AEE

Htur A
REMFEEETWA

HifE S WA
EEBEWA
Ht

5 H@RSBEH

2011 2010
—2——% —E-2F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Restated)

(&%)

(Note 2.1(b))

(Bt 2.1(b))

120,705 104,130
53,193 14,576
21,607 38,387
4,664 —
200,169 157,093
6,904 7,064
3,000 4,926
3,325 —
5,085 2,718
18,314 14,708
218,483 171,801




MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

5 Revenue and segment information 5 RERSHBEH=)
(Continued)
The chief operating decision maker has been identified AEEHRTESHRATELRERE
as the Executive Directors of the Group. The Executive HEoHITEETEFREB 2AZPIHE LL
Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in L EE PHMERRIELRIIRE
order to assess performance, allocate resources and HITEZCRBAEB 2ABREEE
make strategic decisions. The Executive Directors KeEDE o

have determined the operating segments based on the

Group’s internal reporting.

For the year ended 31st March 2011, the Group operates BE—E——SF=A=1t—HLEE "

in five business segments: REBZzAREXRSBE :

—  Television operations — BREK

—  Film exhibition and film rights licensing and sub- — E¥HMEREZIRERLDRER
licensing

—  Sale and distribution of films and programs in audio — HUEBERFAHEHERBTZEY
visual product format REIH

—  Artiste management — EAEHE

—  Property investment — WERE
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XNRGENEBERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R AR B

5 Revenue and segment information 5 RERSBEH=)
(Continued)
The segment information for the year ended 31st March BEEFTEEKE P 2EBE-ZE——F=

B=+T—-BLFEIHERMT :

2011 by each principal activity is as follows:

Year ended 31st March 2011
BE_Z——£ZP=+-ALER

Sale and
distribution
Film of films and
exhibition ~ programs
and film in audio
rights visual
licensing product
and sub- format
licensing MFEER
Television EFHME BRABE Artiste  Property
operations BEWmE R%{TZ management investment Elimination Group
EiEE BHREE SERE&E ELEE NERE faf F5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note (b))
(K (b))
External sales HoMEE 120,705 53,193 21,607 4,664 - - 200,169
Inter-segment sales PHEEE - 3,451 - - - (3,451) -
Segment revenue 2Bl 120,705 56,644 21,607 4,664 - (3,451) 200,169
Reportable segment profit CEL Ve 17,247 6,173 5,436 2,671 35,808 (483) 66,852
Reportable segment assets ~ AIZHHHEE 56,683 97,528 153,751 - 148,486 (2,281) 454,167
Reportable segment liabilities ~ AI2H2HEE (23,828) (22,321) (10,900) - (18,275) - (75,324)
Depreciation of property, NE - BERREZR
plant and equipment and ERAEL Rt
amortisation of leasehold gz HE
land and land use rights (585) (363) (822) - - - (1,770)
Amortisation of film rights EYMRERS (39,120) (13,730) (5,889) - - 2,968 (55,765)
Provision for impairment of ~ EZERERE
film rights - (106) (854) - - - (960)
Additions to property, plant ~ FEYE - KRR RfE
and equipment 169 4,449 1,695 - - - 6,313
Additions to investment RERENE
properties - - - - 170 - 170
Additions to film rights, films ~ FES /i - FELH
in progress and film royalty ~ E¥REFMERS
deposits 43,218 55,385 8,382 - - (3,451) 103,534
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

5 Revenue and segment information 5 RERSHBEH=)
(Continued)
The segment information for the year ended 31st March BETELREADPZHE-E

B=+T—-BLFEIHERMT :

—EF=

2010 by each principal activity is as follows:

Year ended 31st March 2010

HE-2-BEA=f-HLEE
Sale and
distribution
Film  of films and
exhibition programs
and film in audio
rights visual
licensing product
and sub- format
licensing  FEER
Television EFHBE  FAEE Atiste  Property
operations S K#f72 management  investment  Elimination Group
ER%E RURER EIRHA  BAEE  MERE # 5B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr Az FiEr T FET Az TEr
(Restated) (note (b))
(&E5) (fiit )
(Note 2.1(b))
(Hit2.10))
External sales HMEE 104,130 14,576 38,387 - - - 157,093
Inter-segment sales PHEEE - 4,504 - - - (4,504) -
Segment revenue PHKE 104,130 19,080 38,387 - = (4504) 157,03
Reportable segment profit 2R HHE 15,444 1,512 1,676 - 29,025 1,778 49,635
Reportable segment assets ~ AIZHIHEE 53,537 46,564 84,091 - 132,779 (1,797) 315,174
Reportable segment liabilites  A2HATEE (19,883) (20,281) (38,797) - (20,775) - (99,736)
Depreciation of property, N BERBEZRE
plant and equipment and REEL R LHFER
amortisation of leasehold ok 0
land and land use rights (1,044) (54) (597) - - - (1,695)
Amortisation of film rights EXEHE (28,771) (2,980) (6,792) - - 6,281 (32,262)
Provision for impairment of ~ EFERERE
film rights - (1,763) (792) - - - (2,555)
Additions to property, plant  FEYF « BEREfE
and equipment 418 45 52 - - - 515
Additions to investment RERENE
properties - - - - 17,133 - 17,133
Additions to film rights, films ~ FEE/ME  BETEY
in progress and film royalty ~ REFMERS
deposits 40,863 9,765 7,264 - - (4,504) 53,388
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

(a)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Performance is measured based on segment
profit that is used by the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance. Income tax

expense is not allocated to reportable segments.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of
the Group are allocated based on the operations of

the segments.

Reportable segments profit is profit before
income tax, excluding unallocated share of profit
of associated companies, other income, other
gains — net, finance costs — net, depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and amortisation of
leasehold land and land use rights that are used
by all segments and other corporate expenses
(mainly including staff costs and other general

administrative expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in and
amounts due from associated companies, available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents
and unallocated corporate assets (mainly including
property, plant and equipment and leasehold land

and land use rights that are used by all segments).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude bank
borrowings and unallocated corporate liabilities
(mainly including accrued charges of the head

office).
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
(b)

The revenue attributable to the segment “property

(b)
investment” has been included in other income.
(c) Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or

loss, assets and liabilities

Reportable segment profit or loss, assets and
liabilities are reconciled to profit before income tax
and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as

follows:

Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a

percentage of profit mark-up.

Profit or loss

Reportable segment profit A 2 R 75 35
Unallocated amounts: R ERIE
Unallocated other income AN e E At A
Unallocated other gains — net RoBEME — FEE
Unallocated finance costs — net ROFRERA — FEE
Depreciation of property, plant M MBRREZITER
and equipment and amortisation FAE TRkt ihfF e
of leasehold land and land use 2

rights
Unallocated share of profit of Ko ELRE(G B D B FE
associated companies
Unallocated corporate expenses RAOEEEMT

mEWBE R AT 2 BR TSR AT
bIDES

Profit before income tax per

consolidated income statement

5 INR9EBEE =)

[MERE |29 FEME 2B T A

HARA o
2o HER EEREEZYH
i
A2/ EMWEE ﬁ?&'é{;zit
AREEASE B 2 BRPT S HLAT R -
EERBEEHERNOT :
D EBEHEERRANE T B N
FR A URER
R
2011 2010
—2——%F —Z-ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#T FET
66,852 49,635
4,222 2,603
(1,799) 21,416
(183) (1,939)
(7,316) (7,243)
276 —
(2,604) (4,633)
59,448 59,839
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

5 Revenue and segment information 5 RERSBEH=)
(Continued)
() (Continued) (c) (#)
Assets BE
2011 2010
—2——% —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FAET
Reportable segment assets AI2|oHEE 454,167 315,174
Unallocated assets: RABMEE :
Unallocated property, plant and RO - HBRZER
equipment and leasehold land HET R i FEAER
and land use rights g == 141,669 121,894
Unallocated available-for-sale AOBMAMEHENKERE
financial assets 22,096 45,086
Unallocated financial assets at fair ROBEDAFEFABRRZ
value through profit or loss Mg EE 51,095 50,124
Unallocated cash and cash RABMRERERRELIEE
equivalents 839 802
Unallocated interests in and ROBMABE RN T 2R R
amounts due from associated PE U Bt A BIFRIR
companies 3,755 —
Unallocated corporate assets AOEEEEE 2,045 9,993

Total assets per consolidated balance #EEEEBRMIIZAEE

sheet 675,666 543,073
Liabilities Rl
Reportable segment liabilities AZ2|aHEE 75,324 99,736
Unallocated liabilities: ROBEE :

Unallocated bank borrowings ADESRITIEE 11,616 26,330

Unallocated corporate liabilities ROmMEEER 1,637 1,887
Total liabilities per consolidated HEEERBERMIIZEAE

balance sheet 88,577 127,953
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

5 Revenue and segment information 5 RERSHBEH=)
(Continued)
The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The result of BERURBELEEME HUREER
its revenue from external customers and non-current HMERZIEFRERFERBEE
assets other than interests in associated companies and (REE DR 2GR IETERN) 2
financial instruments located in Hong Kong and other SEEPAMINT

countries are summarised below:

Non-current assets
(other than interests in

associated companies and

Revenue from external financial instruments)
customers FRBEE (RBRELTCHE
SHERE Rl & REMBIARS)
2011 2010 2011 2010
25 —E-EF 25 “EZ-%F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(#E5)
(Note 2.1(b))
(Hfat2.1(b))
Hong Kong B8 90,373 99,565 313,634 269,481
Singapore s 52,312 47,650 - -
PRC HE 34,229 - 96,981 64,400
Other countries HitEX 23,255 9,878 7,170 2,092
200,169 157,093 417,785 335,973
Revenues of approximately HK$53,689,000 W 2= #9 53,689,000 Tt K 52,312,000
and HK$52,312,000 (2010: HK$52,146,000 and BL(ZE—FF 152,146,000 T &
HK$47,650,000) are derived from two single external 47,650,000 7T ) J3R B W B B — S D
customers. These revenues are attributable to the BF - ZEWRTIRBEERFEKDEL

television operations segment.
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Other gains — net

Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of
building (note 14(k))

Surplus on revaluation of investment
properties (note 16)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets (note 23(a))

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets (note 23(a))

Fair value (losses)/gains on financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss (note 23(b))

Fair value gains on derivative financial

instruments
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6 Hftuliz — B

BFELERRG(EA)
(BtaE 14(k))
REWMEE LB (FZE16)

HEME A m U
HETHREEMBERENRS
(Ktat23(a))
AREEMKEEZREBERSIE
(H1aE23(a))
BAFEFTABRRZMBEE
ZATFE(EE) WE
(H1aE23(b))
FTERB I A2 AFERR

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XNRGENEBERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

2011 2010
—g——% —2-3F
HK$°000 HK$°000
F#ET FEx

87 (87)

31,001 22,504
3,265 —
7,055 —
(1,261) —
(10,945) 21,467

- 36

29,202 43,920




MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

ERRYENEEBRAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

Expenses by nature 7 BREHISZHAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing STASHERAN - HERTHHERER -
expenses, administrative expenses are analysed as THREZZEIZZMWT :
follows:
2011 2010
—2——%F —ZE-ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEIT FET
Cost of inventories (note 24) BFEE A (Kt 24) 3,629 6,430
Provision for obsolescence of inventories [RE 17 & &% (ff:F 24)
(note 24) 633 487
Amortisation of leasehold land and land  FH& 1 i % - ith {55 F 4 42 65
use rights (note 13) (Btat 13) 788 555
Depreciation (note 14) e (e 14)
—owned property, plant and — BEWE BBERZE
equipment 7,987 5,520
—leased property, plant and — HEYE - HEREE
equipment 311 2,863
Amortisation of film rights (note 17) B (HE17) 55,765 32,262
Provision for impairment of film rights BYIRERERE(MZE17)
(note 17) 960 2,555
Reversal of provision for impairment FEUW B & N B SR IE R E R R E
of amount due from an associated (BtaE 18(c))
company (note 18(c)) - (1,780)
Employee benefit expenses (including BEERAMEZ(BEESME)
directors’ emoluments) (note 12) (Btat12) 30,430 25,065
Auditor’s remuneration BREEMH €
— current year — KEE 1,461 1,295
— over-provision in prior years — BEFEBIERE - (18)
Marketing and promotion expenses EIHREERE 6,034 7,399
Production and origination costs SUER R AR AR 23,473 17,347
Direct operating expenses arising from  E£HEWA 2 REVEFTES
investment properties that generate ZEEREMZ (MEE16)
rental income (note 16) 1,625 987
Theatrical costs BB AR A 17,888 2,938
Transmission costs (ELa %N 13,624 12,870
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XNRGENEBERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

8 Finance costs — net

Finance income
— Interest income on short-term bank

deposits

— Interest income on loans to third parties

Finance costs
— Interest on loans and overdrafts
— Interest element of finance leases

— Interest accretion of convertible notes

Finance costs — net
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8 WMBERF — BH

2011 2010
—E2——% —E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET

BB A

— BHSRITERZAE WA

543 168
— BME=FERZFEWA 95 1,237
638 1,405

MERE
— BERREZZRE (652) (938)
— BERNZFE 5D (169) (287)
— ARREBEMZFE - (2,210)
(821) (3,435)
MERE — 28 (183) (2,030)




MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 Income tax expense 9
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

Current income tax BIER AT 1S BE

— Hong Kong profits tax — BBFEH

— Over-provision in prior year — BEFEBERE
Deferred income tax (note 31) IEFEFRS T (Ma£ 31)
Income tax expense Fre®if %

e SRR MY R

FRi3 B3
EEBANEH D RBERFEE M ERBA
MU E16.5% (ZFE—ZF 1 16.5%)
e o BINRIE 2 B R Al IR B
B R AR AR EE S E EBH
EERZBRITHENE -

2011 2010
—Z2—%f —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
6,277 4,014
(243) (222)
6,034 3,792
4,970 3,839
11,004 7,631
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

10

Income tax expense (Continued) 9 Frfs#BAZ @)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs 7855 [ 2 BR B 15 % A A 2 i 18 B 5
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the GEERABEAMELOREEEZ
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the EReEMEBZEZRUT
consolidated entities as follows:
2011 2010
—B——%F —E-BF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Profit before income tax FR B 15 %54 7 A1 )R 59,448 59,839
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REBEXFBEB A B R
applicable to profits in the respective AEZHIE
countries 9,635 8,714
Tax effects of: UTREZRBLE :
Associates’ results reported net of tax SRBE AT EE
(HIRRBiE) (46) -
Income not subject to tax BARBURA (7,865) (1,196)
Expenses not deductible for tax IRk
purposes 5,160 1,101
Tax losses for which no deferred income W EMERIEIEFTEREE 2
tax assets was recognised HIEEE 4,907 4,881
Utilistation of previously unrecognised B A AR ERTIEEE
tax losses (544) (5,647)
Over-provision in prior year BEFEEERE (243) (222)
Tax charge PSR 11,004 7,631
The weight average applicable tax rate was 16% (2010: MELHEABTER16B(ZZE—F
15%). B 15%) o
Loss attributable to equity holders of 10 XLNFIREFAEAEGEGR

the Company

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to
the extent of HK$2,225,000 (2010: HK$4,234,000) (note
28(b)).
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$55,000,000 (2010: HK$51,965,000)
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 5,555,827,000 (2010: 4,910,455,000) in issue
during the year (note 27).

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. During the year ended
31st March 2010, the Company has convertible
notes as dilutive potential ordinary shares. The
convertible notes are assumed to have been
converted into ordinary shares, and the net profit is
adjusted to eliminate the interest expense less the

tax effect.

For the year ended 31st March 2010, the diluted
earnings per share was the same as the basic
earnings per share as the conversion of the
Company’s outstanding convertible notes during the

year would be anti-dilutive.

For the year ended 31st March 2011, the diluted
earnings per share was the same as the basic
earnings per share as there were no outstanding

convertible notes during the year.

e SRR MY R

11 SiREF

(a)

(b)

EF
BEREXRBADEADAESF
B AFE(RFI3E 55,000,000 7t (=
— & F 151,965,000 T ) K
L;LEWE%*??%EHHD%%@?&
5,555,827,000 R (= & — T F :
4,910,455,000 %) (Ilfﬁfzﬂa“r% c

W
EREERANDERRCRITERE
kME$ﬂ%IF“R#ﬁﬁ%E
BEEBER BE-T-TF=A
E+—H¢¢E’$@ﬁﬁﬂ@%
?FW%@%%E%E&°W#H
SEBRRCERBSEER - mat
ﬂ%%ﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁimﬁm
37

BE_Z-ZF=-A=1T—-HLHF
B AREBAQBRTETRR
SEARBEER  HESREBER
MRFREABFAER o

BE_E——F=A=1T—-HLHF
E - ARFARQTLERITER
BRRE  USREERFNESRK
EARBFAER o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XNRGENEBERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

12 Employee benefit expenses (including

directors’ emoluments)

Wages and salaries
Pension costs — defined contribution

plans
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12 ERRIAX(BEEEHE)

2011 2010

—E——5 —E-TF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

ITERHFE 29,899 24,556
BIRERA — REMRRETE

531 509

30,430 25,065




MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

12 Employee benefit expenses (including 12 EARFIAXZX(BREFENL)
directors’ emoluments) (Continued) (#)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EFHE
The remuneration of all directors for the years BE_E——FKR-_ZE—ZEF=A
ended 31st March 2011 and 2010 is set out below: =S+-HLFEEEGTFERESY
BE&HMNWT :
2011 2010
2g--% “3-3f
Other Other
emoluments emoluments
- basic - basic
salaries, Pension salaries, Pension
allowances costs - alowances costs —
and other defined and other defined
benefits  contribution benefts  contribution
Name of Director 5] Fees in kind plans Total Fees in kind plan Tota
Eftdle - B¢ -
E3g. Bxge.
AWRAY  Bdnd - RUREf  RIGHA -
fié EOHE Rt #it fig Bifs  RElwid a3t

HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000
FET FET FET FEL f&r fér T&r f&r

Executive directors UfrEs

LiKuo Hsing X - 4,000 12 4012 - 3810 12 3822

Tong Hing Chi EBH - 140 12 1,442 - 1,295 12 107

Chau Kei Leung BER - 780 12 192 - 715 1 71

Non-executive directors ~ FFHTES

Chan Ngan Piu 5 % - - % % - - %

Hugo Shong HES 80 - - 80 10 - = 0

Independent non-executive  BiIEHTEE

directors

Les G. Lam H5E 8 - - 8 10 - - 7

Wang Huarong 1EE 80 - - 80 10 - - 70

Cheung Ming Man L 80 - - 80 70 - - 10
46 6,210 36 6,662 376 5,820 3 6,32

None of the directors has waived any of their MEEERESEE 2 ——8K =

emoluments in respect of the years ended 31st EE=FA=1T—HIEFEZEMAHME -

March 2011 and 2010.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

12 Employee benefit expenses (including

directors’ emoluments) (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include three
(2010: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid or payable to the remaining
two (2010: two) individuals during the year are as

follows:

Basic salaries, allowances and other E7AK#4 - EEF R

benefits in kind HugYH=
Pension costs — defined contribution EREMAKR — FE
plans MG E

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z#E 7 — 1,000,000 T
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 & T
— 2,000,000 % T

During the years ended 31st March 2011 and 2010,
no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
three (2010: three) directors or the two (2010: two)
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss

of office.
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12 RREFIAZ(BEESEHE)

(#&)

(b) HAIEEHFEAL
FR AEEENVBESHHA L
Fo=ZR(ZE-TF  =R)RE
= HMESFBORLIENZS
MR - FRENHEMNFHHR
B(ZE—ZF  MA)BEHHA
T2MEmT :

2011 2010
—g—% —T-%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
2,005 1,880

12 12

2,017 1,892

MEeHmENT :

Number of individuals

AB
2011 2010
—Z——%F —E-FF
1 1
1 1
2 2

BE-_Z——FR-_ZT-ZTF=A
=St+—HLEFE > AEBYE@=
H(ZE—ZF  ZR)ESIWME
(ZZ—ZF WMB)BEFMAL
SAAME  EAMAREE ZEE
WIFRBEEE -



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

12 Employee benefit expenses (including 12 EARFIAXZX(BREFENL)
directors’ emoluments) (Continued) (4)

(c)

(d)

Emolument policy

The Group’s emoluments (including the directors’
emoluments) are determined by the Board of
Directors with reference to their contributions in
terms of time, effort and their expertise and are

reviewed on an annual basis.

Pension scheme arrangement

The Group provides a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its staff in Hong
Kong under the requirement of the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
(“MPF Scheme Ordinance”). Under the MPF
scheme, the Group’s contributions are calculated at
5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined
in the MPF Scheme Ordinance up to a maximum of
HK$1,000 per employee per month. The employees
also contribute a corresponding amount to the
MPF Scheme if their relevant income is more than
HK$5,000 per month. All benefits derived from the
mandatory contribution must be preserved until the
employee reaches the retirement age of 65 subject
to certain exceptions. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds. The total
contribution to the MPF Scheme paid by the Group
during the year amounted to HK$456,000 (2010:
HK$436,000).

(c)

(d)

B & B R
REBCHE(BRESHME) D
HESELESEREMTH2EB
RBH UARKE2EENBME
T UESFEHR -

B EtBIREE

REERBESBRBMEAESTHE
FEEITRESTERHN D AHESE
BETRMBFHMEAESEN( R
BE5rE]) - RIFEESEE > K
Bz HRiRABE S ENRGI TR
EZEEHBRAS%E &S
ASEESEH1,000/8T - HEES
ZHHEAW A @B %S A 5,000/ T
Al SR EmaiEe st B1EHAERE
SEZMER o RETHIIMERI -
BEIMEERTEE 22 HEFEE
TRE BEEEEFE6SEEIN
FRBILE - BESHEIZEERR
SEZEESH HEREEZES
BYRE - £ AEEREES
FTEIEH 2 X458 5 456,000
JL(ZZE—Z4 : 436,00087T) °
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

12 Employee benefit expenses (including 12 EARFIAXZX(BREFENL)
directors’ emoluments) (Continued) (4)

(d)

Pension scheme arrangement (Continued)

The Group also contributes to a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) which
provides retirement benefits to its employees who
joined the Group prior to the adoption of the MPF
Scheme and chose not to join the MPF Scheme
after its adoption. The Retirement Scheme’s
assets are held in a provident fund (the “Fund”)
managed by an independent administrator. Under
the Retirement Scheme, both the employer and the
employees are required to contribute 5% of the
basic salary of the employees (up to a maximum of
HK$1,000 per employee) on a monthly basis. The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
contribution after 10 years of completed service,
or at a reduced scale of between 20% and 90%
after completion of 2 to 9 years’ service, in which
case the forfeited contributions are to be used to
reduce the employer’s contributions. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay the related employee benefits. The
aggregate employer’s contributions, net of forfeited
contributions, which have been dealt with in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31st March 2011 amounted to HK$75,000 (2010:
HK$73,000).

At 31st March 2011, there is no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future
contributions under the Retirement Scheme and
contributions totaling HK$73,000 (2010: HK$73,000)
and HK$12,000 (2010: HK$12,000) payable to
the MPF Scheme and the Retirement Scheme
respectively were included in the consolidated

balance sheet.
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(d)

BHBIREEE)
REETF @R ERTBARETE(R
REF 8 DEEMR > BIRGTER
REMEB ST AT MEAEE R
RIERMEE ST BRI RBEMNA
BES B2 EERMEBRARER -
BAGFE2EEHBYERAER
ZAEE(E2NEE - RER
HhatéE BEREEHNES AR
BEEEAF 5% EHER(RS
AEEE1,0008T) EERE
RI0FRBEEERZEREME
2 100% 5K R TH2ZE9
FHREE  RERBLHAZE20%
Z0%RBEMMA - EUBERT -
Rt AE AE R A EE 2B -
HESWEFEEAEEXNEE
BERF > BIAEEIEEERHE
EEAXFE-—SHR - EREZE
—E——F=A=1+—HILEFEZ
REWBEERARE 2 EEMARAE
(FORRE WA FR) £ 75,000 8 7T (=
T—FF :73,000/8T) °

R=ZE——F=A=+—H8  1&
AR D R 5 R G 8 2 RR
M2 R WM mEEESEE
RENRFEFELEZHRDBIEH
73,0008 T(=ZF—=F : 73,000
BT ) k12,0008 T(Z & - &
F 12,0008 ) EDBIFFAGZE
EESERRK -



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

13 Leasehold land and land use rights — 13 #HELTHMRTHERE — F
Group sE
2011 2010
—2——5F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1st April 2010 and 2009 R-ZB-—ZER-ZZTNF
MA—H 32,025 11,946
Additions 120 - 20,634
Amortisation of leasehold land and land FHE £t [ £ {5 P AR 4
use rights (note 7) (KtaE7) (788) (555)
At 31st March 2011 and 2010 R-ZB——FK-2—2F
=A=+—8 31,237 32,025
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use AEBAEEL R T EAE R
rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and ERNKERNREREREES W
their carrying amounts are analysed as follows: T s
2011 2010
22— —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRIT FET

Held on leases of between 10 to 50 years & +ZRE+EZHLYFE

In Hong Kong REB 11,301 11,624
Outside Hong Kong RBEBIREH 19,936 20,401
31,237 32,025
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

14 Property, plant and equipment — Group 14 Y% - BBRERE — F5KE

Leasehold Furniture,
Construction improve- fixtures and Motor
Buildings in progress ments  equipment vehicles Total
&R RE
i ERIE HEWRRE R AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 FEr T T FE 7
At 1st April 2009 R-SSNEMA-A
Cost or valuation RS 84,842 - 14,599 30,595 5,745 135,781
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - - (8,467) (16,061) (5,124) (29,652)
Net book amount REFE 84,842 - 6,132 14,534 621 106,129
Year ended 31st March 2010 HEZE-3F
ZAST-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 84,842 - 6,132 14,534 621 106,129
Additions bl 9,876 - 18 674 - 10,568
Depreciation charge (note 7) e (2,344) - (1,446) 4,178) (415) (8,383)
Revaluation deficit (note (k) BB K (2,505) - - - - (2,505)
Exchange differences ERzR - - 2 20 - 43
Closing net book amount FRETBE 89,869 - 4701 11,050 206 105,852
At 31st March 2010 RZZ-S%=f=1-A
Cost or valuation RS 89,869 - 14,648 31,320 4,347 140,184
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - - (9,921) (20270) (4,141) (34,332)
Net book amount EE#E 89,869 - 4721 11,050 206 105,852
Year ended 31st March 2011 R-§——FZR=1-H
Opening net book amount FEEFE 89,869 - 4701 11,050 206 105,852
Additions 21 - 431 3,278 44 1,948 6,396
Depreciation charge (note 7) WERZ (Hit7) (2,164) - (1,693) (3918) (529) (8,299)
Revaluation surplus (note (k) BRI K) 4,82 - - - - 4,822
Transferred from investment properties ERRRENEWAN)

(note (b)) 20,648 - - - - 20,648
Transferred to investment properties (note (j) ~ EBZRENZE (M2 () (11,300 - - - = (11,300
Exchange differences EiZH - 8 80 43 5 136
Closing net book amount EfReR 101,875 439 6,387 7,919 1,636 118,256
At 31st March 2011 RZB——-F=f=1-H
Cost or valuation HAZfEE 101,875 439 18,030 32,035 6,300 158,679
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - - (11,643) (24,116) (4,664) (40,429)
Net book amount FEsE 101,875 439 6,387 7919 1,636 118,256
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 Property, plant and equipment — Group
(Continued)

(a)

()

Certain leasehold land and land use rights
(note 13) and buildings of the Group situated
in Hong Kong are held by the Group under a
lease agreement dated 25th August 1997 with
the Hong Kong Industrial Estates Corporation
(“HKIEC”) which restricts the usage of the premise
to the manufacture of optical discs and related
business. The Group’s interests in the buildings are
transferable subject to the right of first refusal to
purchase by HKIEC.

Accordingly, the buildings were last revaluated
on 31st March 2011 by Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited, an independent professional qualified
valuer, on a depreciated replacement cost basis,
which is the aggregate of the land value in its
existing use and the estimated replacement costs
of the buildings. The revaluation surplus net of
applicable deferred income taxes was credited
to buildings revaluation reserve in shareholder’s
HKIEC merged with two other

corporations in 2001 and is presently known

equity (note 28(a)).

as Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks

Corporation.

The carrying amount of the buildings would have
been HK$95,411,000 (2010: HK$89,228,000)
had they been stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation.

At 31st March 2011, the buildings with carrying
value of HK$91,605,000 (2010: HK$80,192,000)
were pledged as security for banking facilities

granted to the Group (note 30(a)).

e SRR MY R

14 YR - WBREE — FRE

(&)

()

AEEE THE LR - EHE
(MEF1BREFDUAEE > I
HAEERER-AAEENA
T RAREEBTEMAT([TE
WAR DT L2 HERRFE » &
& 15 3R A5 V) SE PR I A FRAERME
B RABBAZETS - AEENZEWE
ZRERATEZ  MIXBAARE
EELBERERE-

Hit » BUEESEKEEMERH
BEAGMITERARAKRTERE
BRARES AR -_T——F=
B=+—BEMGMZSYEZEE
AREEEARz L EEE G
BFEERARZBETE - KRB
FRIEEMSHRZEMERTIFTA
BRRERZEFEGREERHT
28(a)) e TXWARR=-ZEZ—F
HEEIMBEAREH  BREEAE
BREEAT -

2 F IR KA R FHITE AR » Al
HERMEE %A 95,411,00058 T (=
—Z 4 1 89,228,000 T) ©

RZZE——F=F=+—-H K
H{E A 91,605,000 T (=2 —F
% : 80,192,000 T) 22 FEIK
RIEALREEMERTEEZER
(MtzE30(a)) °
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

14 Property, plant and equipment — Group
(Continued)

(d) The Group’s buildings are stated at valuation and

other components of property, plant and equipment

are stated at cost.

() At 31st March 2011, the carrying amount of
motor vehicles held under finance leases was
HK$1,348,000 (2010: HK$206,000).

(f At 31st March 2010, the carrying amount of
furniture, fixtures and equipment held under finance
leases was HK$6,653,000.

(9) Depreciation expense of HK$8,298,000 (2010:
HK$8,383,000) has been included in administrative

expenses in the consolidated income statement.

(h)  During the year ended 31st March 2011, investment
properties with carrying amount of HK$20,648,000
has been transferred to property, plant and

equipment as a result of change in usage.

(i)  During the year ended 31st March 2011, property,
plant and equipment with carrying amount of
HK$11,300,000 has been transferred to investment

properties as a result of change in usage.

() Lease rental income amounting to HK$3,000,000
(2010: HK$2,880,000) relating to the lease of
furniture, fixture and equipment are included in the

consolidated income statement.

(k) Revaluation surplus of HK$4,735,000 (2010: deficit
of HK$2,418,000) and HK$87,000 (2010: deficit
of HK$87,000) has been charged to buildings
revaluation reserve and to other gains — net in the

consolidated income statement, respectively.
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14 YR - WBREE — FRE

(4&)
(d)

ZIK%ZE??E{MEAEE ik’
X EBERRE2H D AEK
ZI-U\,EE°

R=ZFE——F=H=+—-H 1
BREHAFEZREZREE
#1,348,0008 T (= ZE —F F :
206,000 7T) °

R-ZEBE——F=A=+—H B
MEBRNFEZERE  HERRE
ZIRE{E % 6,653,00078 T °

T E B £ 8,298,00058 T (=& —
ZE F : 8,383,00078 Jt ) E 5 A &r
EWBERZITHAZA °

BE-Z——F=F=1+—HLHF
ER EEE{EZO 648,0007% T Z
REVFCEARRREMEREY
% HERNRERME -

BE-Z——F=A=+—HILHF
E R BRME{E 11,300,000 T 2
YE - WERRECEARREM
BREREYE -

FHRHEERE £EBRRE2A
£ W A 3,000,000/ T(ZF—F
£ : 2,880,000 7t ) it A& & WK

B 44,735,0008 T (=F —
Z & 55 #2,418,00058 T ) &
87,000 T(=ZZE—Z F : F 4l
87,000 7T) 7 BN EF Efhf# B
Rirchmke Hila — F58
PR



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

15 |MELEE — +5KH

15 Intangible assets — Group

Contractual
supplier
Goodwill relationships Total
= 2]
me HEER R st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
At 1st April 2009, 31st A_EZThFEA—HLUR
March 2010 and 2011 —2-EER-T——F
=RA=+-—H
Cost EN 22,413 9,029 31,442
Accumulated amortisation ZH i RRE
and impairment (22,413) (9,029) (31,442)
Net book amount REEE — — —

AAREER-ZZENFETZMEAR
BELECRERGHNHERRARZD 5

Goodwill and contractual supplier relationships of
HK$22,413,000 and HK$9,029,000 respectively arise from

two acquisitions by the Group in 2008 were recognised in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2009.

Management assessed the recoverable amounts of
goodwill and contractual supplier relationships by
estimating the cash flows expected to be generated from
the acquired businesses and determined to make full
impairment provision against the goodwill and contractual
supplier relationships respectively in the consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2009.

22,413,0007% Jt £ 9,029,000 & T R &
BCEENF=ZRA=F+—HLEFEEZLH
B IIERRIER ©

EEEBEBMAIINBREANEL
RERBFARE2IREHERSH
HEBEER YRESIFIABERS
HWEEEEERBE-_ZETAF=A
=t -RLEFEFSMBRREZER
E#E -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

16 Investment properties — Group

16 REYMR — +5KH

2011 2010

—E—%F —E-FF

HK$°000 HK$°000

TF#EIT FET

At 1st April 2010 and 2009 R-E—ZEFR-ZEFTAFNA—AH 123,898 84,261

Additions 0 170 17,133
Transferred from property, plant and  E# H Y% - #EE R EE

equipment (note 14(i) (BtEE 14() 11,300 —
Transferred to property, plant and EHIREYE - HEBEERERE

equipment (note 14(h)) (B1aE 14(h)) (20,648) -

Surplus on revaluation (note 6) BMRRME6) 31,001 22,504

Exchange differences BE % =28 1,004 —

At 31st March 2011 and 2010 R-BE——FER-Z2—ZF
=A=+—H 146,725 123,898

The following amounts have been recognised in the

consolidated income statement for investment properties:

Rental income (note 5)

Direct operating expenses arising
from investment properties that
generate rental income (note 7)

HE WA (Kt 5)

EEHEETWAZREMZE
FREE 2 EEREERX
(B1aE 7)

(@) The investment properties of the Group were (a)

revalued on 31st March 2011 by Memfus Wong
Surveyors Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer, on the basis of open market value,
except for properties with amount of HK$11,635,000
(2010: HK$20,048,000),

replacement cost basis was adopted due to the lack

where depreciated

of reliable market information.
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UTF BB RRENKTNG S Wit %
3

2011 2010
—g——% —Z-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH#T F#T
6,904 7,064
1,625 987

AEEZRENVER-ZT——F=A
=t -HEBYEXSERMGEMERN
ERFEBTERARZRAMMEEM
HERZAIETESENMEAFTEERE
BN AL 211,635,000 (=& —=
% 20,048,000 7T) YIRS ©



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

16 Investment properties — Group (Continued) 16 BEYX — xKB @)

(b) The Group’s interests in investment properties at (b) AEEZREREEIRZBEENE

their carrying amounts are analysed as follows: EmDMAT :
2011 2010
—2——% —E-2F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEiT FET
In Hong Kong, held on: REB  BTIENEE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TERTFEZEAYN 104,055 89,648
Outside Hong Kong, held on: RBEBRN B THENEE :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TERETFZAYN 40,900 32,850
Lease of over 50 years BEA+TFE Y 1,770 1,400
146,725 123,898
The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under RIS A i EE AR E AR A B 2 R 3R
non-cancellable operating leases are set out in note REHESBEEAMNHEE35(b) °
35(b).

() At 31st March 2011, certain investment (c) R=ZE——F=A=+-—H KA
properties with an aggregate carrying amount #EHT77,625,0008 T (ZE—=F
of HK$77,625,000 (2010: HK$70,348,000) were 170,348,000/ 8T) 2 & FRE
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to Y IKIFIER AR EBTERIRT
the Group (note 30(a)). FE 2R (KizE30(a)) °
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

17 BRNE  EBERHPAERCRER

17 Film rights, films in progress and film

royalty deposits — Group iEEe — F5KEH
Film
Films in royalty
Film rights progress deposits Total
UL EXRE
ERRE B Be #at
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1st April 2009 R-SEShE
mMA—AH
Cost DN 601,398 4,528 18,027 623,953
Accumulated amortisation ZtEER
and impairment losses REEE (555,391) (2,305) (10,675) (568,371)
Net book amount REFEE 46,007 2,223 7,352 55,582
Year ended 31st March gEFE—_=—2F
2010 =A=+—H
ILEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 46,007 2,223 7,352 55,582
Additions 0 43,187 1,618 8,583 53,388
Transfers B 402 — (402) -
Amortisation charge (note 7) #i$5E H (f1zt 7) (32,262) — = (32,262)
Impairment charge (note 7)  B{EE A (f1:E7) (2,555) — — (2,555)
Exchange difference EH =5 45 — - 45
Closing net book amount FARKREFEE 54,824 3,841 15,533 74,198
At 31st March 2010 R-=—2Zf
=B=+—H
Cost BN 530,267 4,759 15,533 550,559
Accumulated amortisation ZtEER
and impairment losses REEE (475,443) (918) = (476,361)
Net book amount RERE 54,824 3,841 15,533 74,198
Year ended 31st March gEFE—_=—fF
2011 =A=+—H
ILEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 54,824 3,841 15,533 74,198
Additions 0 53,945 31,880 17,709 103,534
Transfers B 17,174 (1,260) (15,914) -
Amortisation charge (note 7) #i$5E H (f1zt 7) (55,765) — = (65,765)
Impairment charge (note 7)  B{EE A (f1:E7) (960) — - (960)
Exchange difference [EH =2 — 560 — 560
Closing net book amount FARREFE 69,218 35,021 17,328 121,567
At 31st March 2011 R-T——%F
=B=+—H
Cost DN 595,420 35,939 17,328 648,687
Accumulated amortisation ZtEER
and impairment losses REEE (526,202) (918) = (527,120)
Net book amount RS E 69,218 35,021 17,328 121,567
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Film rights, films in progress and film 17
royalty deposits — Group (Continued)
(@) Amortisation charge of HK$55,765,000 (2010:
HK$32,262,000) with respect to film rights has been
included in cost of sales in the consolidated income

statement.

(b) The carrying amounts of film rights have been
reduced to their recoverable amounts through
recognition of impairment loss of HK$960,000
(2010: HK$2,555,000) which has been included in
cost of sales in the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31st March 2011.

e SRR MY R

EXNE BEPEXRER

MigEE — FKE @)

(a) HFEEEE 255,765,000 T
(== — =% 32,262,000/ 7T )
BEBACTH ARERERZHE
B o

by BE-ZE——F=A=t+—HLHF
- EEREZREESES
WEE 1B 960,000 B T(—E—F
% 12,555,000 7T ) R ZE H A K
B2 - REGES AGRENE
RZEHERHA ©

Interests in associated companies — 18 MEEAFIZHEEZ — xKE
Group
2011 2010
—2——%F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
At 1st April 2010 and 2009 R-IE—EFR-ZFZTIF
MA—H - =
Acquisition of an associated company Weig Bt E N R (2. 1(a)

(note 2.1(a)) - -
Share of profit FE AL 7 276 -
Amounts due from associated JE U B & X R FRIE

companies (note (b)) (K&t (b)) 27,667 24,188
Provision for impairment of amounts due fEURER:E 1 B FOB R E B E

from associated companies (note (c)) (H1aE () (24,188) (24,188)

3,755 —
Less: current portion of amount due OB - B A RIFRIE R BSR4
from an associated company (3,479) —
At 31st March 2011 and 2010 RZE——FR-Z-=F
=A=+—8” 276 -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

18 Interests in associated companies — 18 MEEATFIZHERZ — xKE

Group (Continued) (4&)

(@) At 31st March 2011, all of the Group’s interests in (@ MR=ZZBE——F=A=Z+—H  &&
associated companies are unlisted. The Group’s EREE AR zERAF LT o K
principal associated companies are: EEEEHEQNTS

Percentage
of equity
Nominal value interest
Place of Principal of issued share attributable
Name incorporation activities capital to the Group
=g o 1 B 3L 3t B FER ERTEFEE A EEE(S
KRiEEaSLE
Hongkongmovie.com Hong Kong Post production 100 ordinary shares of 49%
Company Limited (“HKM?”) and playout HK$1 each
services
EREXPXARAT S RHEEREN 100RBREE1E 49%
(TEBELRK]) BR 7% TZEBR
Silver Kent Technology Hong Kong Trading of audio 10,000,000 ordinary 45%
Limited (“Silver Kent”) visual products  shares of HK$1
each
SREBRERAR(HRE]) BE EEYEEM 10,000,000 fRE IR E 45%
B1BTZ2EBR
The financial information of HKM is extracted as ERETRB 2B ERFEEZE
follows: T :
2011 2010
—E——F —Z=-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Total assets WEE 30,902 =
Total liabilities HEE (30,338) (3,265)
Revenue Y &= 28,307 —
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE(EE) 3,830 (26)
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

18 Interests in associated companies — 18 MEEATFIZHERZ — xKE
Group (Continued) (4&)
(@) (Continued) (@ (#&)
The financial information of Silver Kent is extracted IRECHKERFEROT ¢
as follows:
2011 2010
—ZE—%f —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
F&IT FET
Total assets REE 40,879 63,371
Total liabilities FEN=RE (42,491) (64,938)
Revenue g - 67
Loss for the year FREE (44) (1,570)
Silver Kent has ceased operation in prior years. REBERNEF AL LK
During the year ended 31st March 2011, the Group BE-_Z——F=A=t+—HLt
has not recognised losses amounting to HK$20,000 FER - ALK E 5 R E R
(2010: HK$707,000) for Silver Kent. At 31st March E5 820,000 8 T(=ZZ —Z F :
2011, the accumulated losses not recognised were 707,000 L) c R=ZE——F =
HK$1,612,000 (2010: HK$1,592,000). B=+—H  WEERZZTEE
71,612,000 T(=ZZF —FF :

1,592,000 JT) °
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XNRGENEBERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

18 Interests in associated companies —

Group (Continued)

(o) The amounts due from associated companies are (b)

denominated in HK$, unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

() Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment (c)

of amounts due from associated companies are as

follows:

At 1st April 2010 and 2009

Reversal of provision for impairment
of amount due from an associated

company (note 7)

At 31st March 2011 and 2010
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R-B-BER=-FTNE
MA—H

P A I RURALE
BEBE (A3 7)

18 MBIELQTFIZHES — FKE

(4&)

FE U Bt N BRI LB T R EEAL -
HIEW REREBEEERY -

AEER R BE A AR ERE
SHUT :

2011 2010
—s——% —2-%F
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FET FExT
24,188 25,968

- (1,780)

24,188 24,188




MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 Interest in a jointly controlled entity and
a jointly controlled operation — Group

(a)

Interest in a jointly controlled entity — Group

Interest in a jointly controlled entity,

Share of loss

Amount due from a jointly controlled

Provision for impairment of amount

at cost (note (i)

entity (note (i)

due from a jointly controlled entity
(note (iv))

ML EE

(B (i)

This represents the Group’s 70% equity
interest in Guangdong Tung Ah Audio Video
Production Company Limited (“Tung Ah”). The
Group’s control over Tung Ah is restricted
by a provision in the joint venture agreement
that requires unanimous approval by all
directors present for certain major decisions,
notwithstanding the Group having a majority
equity interest and the ability to appoint the
majority of directors. Accordingly, in the
opinion of the directors, the Group does not
have unilateral control over Tung Ah and
the equity method is used to account for its

investment therein.

RAREHER 2 ER
BB (B ()

4= AR

e PR RAR M

19 Tk R G AR B 3 R EHIR
Bz — 5%
RERBNERZHE — F%RE

(a)

FEus B = I B B RKR

PR B = HI B BE KA
BB (BYEE (iv)

2011 2010
—g——% —Z-%f
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,083 1,083
(1,083) (1,083)
22,333 22,333
(22,333) (22,333)

REEAKEMEERRD
ERFERRAB(REE])
70% R HE - AEBRREZ
EHEXAEHED —IRIF
NER - ATAAEEHES
REIDBRERATRZERSH
EE BRETEZREAH
PREFEZ2ES-BtE-
Bt E2R58 ~&H
WEEBRD 2EHEES
- WS AT ERAEE
EZATBZRE -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

19 Interest in a jointly controlled entity and
a jointly controlled operation — Group

(Continued)

(@) Interest in a jointly controlled entity — Group
(Continued)
()  (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Particulars of Tung Ah are as follows:

Country of

Name establishment
2\ BRI ER
BRRTZSHRHEETRA R PRC
(“Guangdong Tung Ah Audio

Video Production Company

Limited”)
BRRDZFHREEFRA R P E

The amount due from the jointly controlled
entity is denominated in HK$, unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed terms of

repayment.

At 31st March 2011 and 2010, Tung Ah was
in a net liabilities position and the Group
has shared its loss up to the extent of its
investment cost of HK$1,083,000.

There were no movements for the Group’s
provision for impairment of amount due from
a jointly controlled entity for the years ended
31st March 2011 and 2010.
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19 RERZFIEREREREGE
Bl — %8 »

(a) RIiRENEREZEZ — xKH
(&
W (&)
REEZFFBUT

Percentage of

interest in

ownership/voting

power/loss

Principal activity and sharing

place of operation held indirectly

HiEsH
BEE BEE
ETEXRBREXME SEBRZAESL
Processing and 70%
distribution of audio
visual products in
PRC
EPREMT RET 70%
EEEMm
(i) FEUW[E) 1R FIE 58 FOE LB

TREMN - BER - ER
HEEE -

iy R=FB——FR=-ZF—FF
=ZA=+—H RTENF
BEMRR MAEEEUR
& & X 71,083,000 % T 5
EEEE -

vy BE=_ZE——FR-—ZF—F
F=ZA=+—HIEFE K
SEERRHAEZEHERREE

IR B ST o



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 Interest in a jointly controlled entity and
a jointly controlled operation — Group
(Continued)

(b)

Jointly controlled operation — Group

In November 2009, the Group entered into a jointly
controlled operation with an independent third
party to develop, operate and distribute a pay
television channel to be broadcasted in various
countries within Asia. During the year ended 31st
March 2011, the share of income from this jointly
controlled operation approximated HK$7,983,000
(2010: HK$767,000). At 31st March 2011 and 2010,
the Group does not have any share of contingent
liabilities and commitments in respect of this

operation.

20 Interests in subsidiaries — Company

Unlisted shares, at cost (note (a))

e SRR MY R

190 REFRFIERZER —
5B =)

(b)

HEAZHESE — *%E
R-ZZBZEhF+—F  A5EEE
VEZFETHEEGER  E
NTEBEXREEE - KERD#E—E
WEEREE  -BE— E——i—
A=+—BLEFER > fhLtH
PEHIZERE 2 A 4 57,983,000 ,%
TT(ZZF—FF :767,00087T) ©
R-ZEB——FR-Z—ZF5=H
=+—0 AEELERLEES
EEMRARBBERFAIE -

20 RMBEARZER — F2F

F LR - WA (3 (a))

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS /B A BIFRIE (£ (b))
(note (b))
Provision for impairment of amounts  FEUR [ff B 2 B FUIE R {E B &

due from subsidiaries

(@)

(b)

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note

39 to the consolidated financial statements.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated
in HK$, unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

terms of repayment.

(b)

2011 2010
—E——%F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
46,010 46,010
658,536 519,516
704,546 565,526
(233,885) (233,885)
470,661 331,641

FTEMBRABAFEBRAREGEE T B
FRFTMIFES9 ©

FEU B B A R RRIR UGB ST R BT »
HIEW REREBEEERY -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

21 Financial instruments by category — 21 BBNBSZCHMEBEIR —
Group and Company FEEREAF
The accounting policies for financial instruments have B TAECEFBHREERARTIE
been applied to the line items below: =
(@) Group (a) #%KHE
Financial
assets at
Available- fair value
for-sale through
Loans and financial profit or
receivables assets loss Total
BROTE
BBk e HARRZ
e TR HEEE ZHBEE - hy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FETT FET FET
Assets BE
At 31st March 2011 R-E—%
=R=+-H
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AtHERKEE
(note 23(a)) (Hf&t23(a)) - 22,096 - 22,096
Trade and other receivables EH R EMEKFE 21,259 - - 21,259
Financial assets at fair value through AV EFFABHERZ
profit or loss (note 23(b)) B EE (M 23(b)) - - 51,095 51,095
Pledged bank deposits (note 22(b))  BIEHRITEH
(HiE22(b)) 43,500 - - 43,500
Cash and cash equivalents (note 26) B&RZFHEE
88 (#i226) 102,445 - - 102,445
167,204 22,096 51,095 240,395
At 31st March 2010 R-Z-ZF
=R=+-H
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ A[tHERKEE
(note 23(2)) (W32 23() - 45,086 - 45,086
Trade and other receivables IR HMEKTE 28,443 - - 28,443
Financial assets at fair value through AT E ABHEEKZ
profit or loss (note 23(b)) M EE(HzL253(b)) - - 50,124 50,124
Pledged bank deposits (note 22(b))  BIEHRITEH
(Rt 22(b)) 43,517 - - 43,517
Cash and cash equivalents (note 26) B&RZEEHE
EH (#fzt26) 24,628 - - 24,628
96,588 45,086 50,124 191,798
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

21 Financial instruments by category — 21 BBNBSZCHMEBEIR —
Group and Company (Continued) EERERELB (#7)
(a) Group (Continued) (a) *KE(E
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

REHEETR
ZHBAaR
HK$°000
F#EIT
Liabilities afR

At 31st March 2011 N _E—F=A=+—H
Borrowings (note 30(a)) B8 (M2 30(a)) 11,616
Obligations under finance leases (note 30(b)) & 8 2 RIE (M2 30(b)) 1,007
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAESFIE 4,056
16,679

At 31st March 2010 R-E—2F=A=1+—H
Borrowings (note 30(a)) B & (B 30(a)) 39,671
Obligations under finance leases (note 30(b)) il & A8 2 RIE (M2 30(b)) 3,023
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEAMBEATRIE 14,790
57,484

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 £ #R



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XNRGENEBERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

21 Financial instruments by category —
Group and Company (Continued)
(b) Company

Assets

At 31st March 2011
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 20)

Cash and cash equivalents (note 26)

At 31st March 2010
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 20)
Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents (note 26)
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21 BENBSZMBIR —
FRERFLTR#)
(b) HLF
Loans and

receivables

ERREKHRIE
HK$’000
Fi#T
HgE

W-_E—$=A=+—H
FEUR Y 8 A B FRIE (A1 aE 20) 424,651
BeRERBEEEE (f:F26) 14
424,665

N _E—EBEF=A=+—H
FE LR B A W TR IE (Kt 20) 285,631
HfhfE Wz 8 837
BeRERBEEEE (f:F26) 10
286,478




MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 Financial instruments by category —
Group and Company (Continued)

(b) Company (Continued)

Liabilities

At 31st March 2011
Other payables

At 31st March 2010
Other payables

22 Credit quality of financial assets —
Group and Company
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither
past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference
to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical

information about the counterparty’s default rates:

=
ma

B RS R ER ML
21 BENBSZMBIR —
FRERFLT (&)
(b) F2T (&)
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

TR
ZHERR
HK$°000
FET
aE
R=®——%=A=+—H
H 0B 66
R-E—EF=A=+—8
B ft FEAS 508 58

22 MBEIRZERER —
FRERFLF
M RBHAE B TR EEE R
TS EHNHERTROE) REBY S
1605 2 0 R (T AT

(a) Trade receivables — Group (a) RHEBYRHIE — F£H

2011 2010
—E2——% —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET FAET

Counterparties without external credit it /MRS E PR 2 45

rating
— Existing customers with no — BANEERLEZ

defaults in the past RERF 12,546 5,292
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

22 Credit quality of financial assets —
Group and Company (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Pledged bank deposits — Group

22 MBETIRAZERER —

(b)

Credit rating (Standard & Poor’s) EHFR(FREEH)
A-1 A-1
A-2 A-2

Hong Kong dollar denominated balances as at 31st
March 2011 represent fixed term deposit placed in
commercial banks in Hong Kong that was pledged
against the banking facilities granted to the Group.
Please refer to note 30(a) for further details of the

arrangement.

The weighted average effective interest rate per
annum on pledged bank deposits was 0.41% per
annum (2010: 0.20% per annum) as at 31st March
2011.

XEERELAT (#)
BERRITER — S£0
2011 2010
—E—— —E-BF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET Fi87
30,000 —
13,500 43,517
43,500 43,517

R-ZZE-——F=A=+t—RLER
REBENZEFREEHRERERR
TRERER  CEMERLREHE
FERRTEEZER - &ZH2
E—SHITFESHMETE30(a) °

R=—Z——%=ZA=+—-H B&
IRIT 17502 A 19 B PR F R =R
BEB0ME(ZE—2F 8
0.20E) °

Cash and cash equivalents — Group and (c) BHe&RHSERALEH — sKER
Company b, X
Group Company
XEE b 3N
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——% -2 -—B——% —Z-ZF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Credit rating EETR
(Standard & Poor’s) (FEE®)
A-1+ A-1+ 363 1,861 — —
A-1 A-1 3,804 843 — —
A-2 A-2 97,872 21,850 14 10
Cash on hand EFRE 406 74 - -
102,445 24,628 14 10
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

23 Financial assets — Group 23 MESE — x5%KH
(a) Available-for-sale financial assets — Group (a) FHHEMBERE — F5H
2011 2010
—2——5F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1st April 2010 and 2009 R-B-—ZER-ZZTNF
MA—H 45,086 18,180
Additions 120 1,943 -
Disposals HE (7,600) -
Fair value (losses)/gains transferred — HEEZEfERE 2 N FE
to equity (B18) W= (17,333) 26,906
At 31st March 2011 and 2010 R-B-——ER-F-FF
=A=+—H 22,096 45,086
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEENBEERR
include the following: T5I&E :

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, &8 EHRAES

at market value BHE 21,414 45,086
Equity securities listed in US, at EE ETRAES

market value ZHE 682 —

Unlisted equity securities I £ RATE 5 625 625

22,721 45,711

Less: Provision for impairment OB ORERE (625) (625)

22,096 45,086

Market value of listed securities EhREzmE 22,096 45,086
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

23 Financial assets — Group (Continued)
(@) Available-for-sale financial assets — Group
(Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated

in the following currencies:

HK$ B
usD

b
dl

During the year ended 31st March 2011, the Group
disposed of available-for-sale financial assets
with carrying amounts of HK$7,600,000. Gain on
disposal of HK$7,055,000 has been released from
equity and recognised in other gains — net in the

consolidated income statement.

During the year ended 31st March 2011, the Group
has made an impairment of HK$1,261,000 on
available-for-sale financial assets. The amount has
been released from equity and recognised in other

gains — net in the consolidated income statement.
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23 MEBERE — *&8 =)

(a)

AHEHEMBERE — FRE(F)

AHHEMBEEUTIIERRE

i :

2011 2010
—s——% =%-%F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT FHAT
21,414 45,086
682 =
22,096 45,086

BEZ-_Z2-——=H=+-—8H
LEERN AEBHEREE
7,600,000 T 2 AT HEB K E
E o HEW 7,055,000/ T E B
RERBE - WARERERZHEAib
Wz — FEERERR o

HE-Z——F=HA=1+—HLE
ER AEECHAHREENEE
EEHRE 1,261,000 T ° FKIE
CEEREE . YRGEARERZ
Htrlhzm — FEERR



23 Financial assets — Group (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MY R

23 MESEE — *%£80 =)
b) BAFEHABARZIHERE

loss — Group — F%EH

2011 2010
—=——% —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FET

At 1st April 2010 and 2009 R-ZE—ZEFER-ZFZNF
MA—H 50,124 22,476
Additions 0 12,303 8,498
Disposals HE (387) (2,317)
Fair value (losses)/gains (note 6) DNFE(EER), W (Aate) (10,945) 21,467

At 31st March 2011 and 2010 RZE——FR-ZF-Z=F
=BA=+—H 51,095 50,124

At 31st March 2011, all of the financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss are equity securities
listed in Hong Kong and denominated in HK$ (2010:
same), except for a balance of HK$4,840,000 (2010:
HK$4,255,000) which is equity securities listed in
UK and denominated in USD. At 31st March 2011,
the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are stated at their market values (2010: same).

At 31st March 2011, certain financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$22,510,000 (2010:
HK$18,454,000) were pledged as security for
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 30(a)).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are presented within operating activities as part
of changes in working capital in the cash flow
statement (note 32(a)).

Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$10,945,000 (2010:
gains of HK$21,467,000) has been included in other
gains — net in the consolidated income statement.

The fair value of all equity securities is based on
their current bid prices in an active market.

R=ZZE——F=A=+—H8 FIEEAFE
AABRRCVBREEYRBEBLTRAE
F UBTABN(ZT—ZTF  HE)  #

#5842 4,840,0008 T (=ZF—FF : 4,255,000
,%75)3%5% EEEHZRABSERAEZTAE
e R=—ZBE——F=A=+—H BAF¥E
FTABERCMBEERAMENRC
ZF MEE) -

R==2E——E=ZA=+—HB ' RELES
22,510,000 jt(= & — & £ : 18,454,000
BR)ZETERATFEFABRRZUMKEEE
ERFEASEBERRITEE ZER(H
5£30(a)) °

BRAFEFABS2HBEEDERERE
RERLELESBH 2 —MOREEXELR
251 (FfFE 32(a))

BRAFEFAEBR 2 BEEZQAFES
$#£10,9450008B T(Z T —ZF: R&E A
21,467,000 70 ) B 5t A SR G W a3k 2 HAb R
&= — JFRE o

FiERABZ 2 AFERBERERT S Z
BITEAEFE -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

24 Inventories — Group

24 ¥R — F¥KHE

2011 2010
—E2——% —E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAT FET
Finished goods SR M 11,092 11,678
Less: provision for obsolete inventories B REFERE (5,360) (4,727)
5,732 6,951
Inventories mainly comprise audio visual products. The FEXTZERYEER - BRABXILFTA
cost of inventories recognised as expense and included FEWBRRFER R ZFERAR 3,629,000
in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement BL(ZZ—ZF :6,430,00087T) - RERF
amounted to HK$3,629,000 (2010: HK$6,430,000). A & 1% 633,000/8 T(=—Z — = F : 487,000
provision for obsolescence of inventories of HK$633,000 BIL)EFAGRESNER ZHERA ©
(2010: HK$487,000) has been included in cost of sales in
the consolidated income statement.
25 Trade and other receivables — Group 25 WHREMEBIRE — &%KEH
2011 2010
—2—% —E-2F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Trade receivables 2 5 EWFIE 37,076 30,732
Less: provision for impairment of trade B BB EWFUERERE
receivables (22,596) (22,596)
Trade receivables — net B S EWFIE — F5E 14,480 8,136
Prepayments, deposits and other FNFIE - RERHAM
receivables U FRIE 14,778 28,658
29,258 36,794
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 Trade and other receivables — Group

(Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

BH==@EA
M= <18 A
B~ E A

Current to 3 months
4 to 6 months

Over 6 months

The Group’s credit terms to trade receivables generally

range from 7 to 90 days (2010: same).

As of 31st March 2011, trade receivables of
HK$1,934,000 (2010: HK$2,844,000) were past due but
not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as

follows:

=EAR
BB =188

Up to 3 months

Over 3 months

As of 31st March 2011, trade receivables of
HK$22,596,000 (2010: HK$22,596,000) were impaired
and fully provided for. The individually impaired
receivables mainly relate to a long-outstanding customer,

which is in unexpectedly difficult financial situation.

e SRR MY R

25 RHRAMEYREA — F5KHE
(#)

BERWFUEZREDMAT ¢

2011 2010
—2——% —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET T
14,030 8,081
450 47
22,596 22,604
37,076 30,732

REEESRUAREZEER —RNF
7TE290R(ZE—FF : EH) °

o

R-ZZE-——-—%5=ZA=+—-R E5
WK 1E 1,934,000 T(Z B -2 F
2,844,000 ) E BB ERRE - %5
FEWRIEEE % W M HE R AL 8 2 08
VEFHER - 2585 RIEEZ R

PES

SHMT -
2011 2010

—g——% —T-2F
HK$’000 HK$°000

FHT FHET

1,485 2,789

449 99

1,934 2,844

R-—ZE——F=A=+—H ESE
W5k 18 22,596,000 B T(—ZE —ZF :
22,596,000 8 T)EMEBER ZHEE -
BRI EREKAEEEE - BERZH
Uz SERSE 2 RAEFERE -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

25 Trade and other receivables — Group 25 HHRHMEWRIE — FKEH
(Continued) (%)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other REBEBS R EMEWEIE ZEREEETD
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: UTHE®REN :
2011 2010
—2——% —E-2F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
HK$ B IT 10,714 23,524
RMB AR 16,455 11,713
JPY =1 1,422 1,179
New Taiwan dollars (“NTD”) e 667 378
29,258 36,794
Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of AEEESZBRBFIERERE2ZE W
trade receivables are as follows: ™
2011 2010
—=——5 —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TF#EIT FET
At 1st April 2010 and 2009 R-ZE-ZER-ZZNF
mA—H 22,596 23,045
Receivables written off during the year as & A5 A & A W B 2
uncollectible FEU R IE - (449)
At 31st March 2011 and 2010 RZB-——FR-Z2-FF
—g=4-§ 22,596 22,596
The creation and release of provision for impaired R IE R ERE 2RI RFRESTA
receivables have been included as part of administrative mEWRERERTHEAZ(MEFET) —3P
expenses in the consolidated income statement (note 7). 7o BRERNKR S5 —RNREET
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally =B ECE SRS ko

written off when there is no expectation of recovering

additional cash.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Trade and other receivables — Group 25
(Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting

date is the fair value of each class of receivable
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral

as security.

e SRR MY R

RARAMEBRHRER — F5KE
(#)
RERAZREEERRA RS EE
WeshoE 2 A FE o A RIS
ERRIERER -

Cash and cash equivalents — Group and 26 ReRERALKEH — &%
Company ER* LT
Group Company
FEE ¥ /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
—2——F —E-E2F ZB——F —E2-EF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET TFEIT FET
Cash at bank and on hand SRITREFHEE 19,341 8,042 14 10
Short-term bank deposits STHASR1T1E R 83,104 16,586 — =
102,445 24,628 14 10
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the RERZLERREBAUTIER, BEN
following currencies:
Group Company
*EE b 3/
2011 2010 2011 2010
———F —E2-FTF 8——F _—ZT-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FExT
HK$ BT 85,758 19,242 14 10
RMB ARHE 7,773 2,050 - —
NTD et 6,044 2,332 - -
JPY H 1,081 1,001 - —
usD EPH 1,789 3 - -
102,445 24,628 14 10
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26 Cash and cash equivalents — Group and 26 Bl&RERREME — &%

Company (Continued) BREAF @)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts include the RREREXMS  RE - ZRALE
following for the purposes of the cash flow statement: BRIBTEZGREUTEE
Group
*T5E
2011 2010
—=——% —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Cash and cash equivalents ReRZERREER 102,445 24,628
Bank overdrafts (note 30) $RITE X (K7 30) (4,523) (7,095)
97,922 17,533
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits R-ZE——F=A=+—H B8R
was 0.43% (2010: 0.50%) per annum as at 31st March FRZEBANERFR04IE(=Z—
2011. These deposits have an average maturity of 35 ZF050E) ZEFRZFHHR
days (2010: 31 days). A3BH(ZE—ZFF :31H) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

N 3 o~

27 Share capital and premium — Group and

Company

Authorised:
At 1st April 2009
Reduction of par value of
ordinary shares due to

share subdivision

(note (a))

At 31st March 2010 and
2011

Issued and fully paid:
At 1st April 2009
Reduction of par value or
ordinary shares due to
share subdivision

(note (a))

At 31st March 2010

Issuance of ordinary
shares in relation to
share placement

(note (b))

At 31st March 2011

SETE ¢

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each

27 BERARE — REE
e

Share capital

B &

Ordinary share of
HK$0.02 each

EREEO.10ETT SRMEEO.02ETT
ZEiER 4 #.]:
No. of No. of
shares shares
BHEE KRrEE
‘000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000
Fhg FET Fhg FET
RZTFAFMBE—H 3,000,000 300,000 — —
A B% 15 3% 41 Bl R
TiEREE
(K1 (@)
(3,000,000) (300,000) 15,000,000 300,000
RZE—ZFR
—E——F
=EE=EF=F — — 15,000,000 300,000
ERTRAR
R-ZZEZFENFMNA—H 982,091 98,209 = =
R B% 15 3% 48 Bl R
TEREE
(K13 (a))
(982,091) (98,209) 4,910,455 98,209
RIE—ZFF
EE=EF=F — — 4,910,455 98,209
MR I ERT
@R (BEE (b))
722,580 14,452
R-E——F
=EE=F=08 5,633,035 112,661
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

27 BERRE — *KER
ENF(#)

27 Share capital and premium — Group and
Company (Continued)

Share premium

BiHRE

HK$’000

FET

At 1st April 2009 R-ZZEZENFWNA—H 167,569

Transfer to reserves (note 28(b)(ii)) B 2 4 (M 28(b)(ii) (167,569)

At 31st March 2010 RZZB-BF=ZA=+—H -
Issuance of ordinary shares in relation to TR PO E R ITEER (A (b))

share placement (note (b)) 126,733

At 31st March 2011 R-E——%=F=+—H 126,733

(@)

Pursuant to a specific resolution passed on 21st
December 2009, each of the existing issued and
unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company was subdivided
into five ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each (the
“Share Subdivision”), which was approved by the
shareholders of the Company and became effective
on 22nd December 2009.

During the year ended 31st March 2011, the
Company completed a share placement, whereby
722,580,000 shares, representing 12.8% of the
enlarged share capital of the Group, were allotted
and issued to subscribers at a price of HK$0.208
per share. Total gross proceeds from the share
placement approximated HK$150,297,000. The
excess of the issue price over the par value of the
shares, net with directly attributable transaction
costs, which approximated HK$126,733,000 was

credited to the share premium account.
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BER-ZZEAF+-A=+—H
BBZ2BIRBR AQATARE
FEREECIVETZEAED #
TRABITEBRIFERARER
EE0.028 Tt 2L BR (KM IF
M) HEEAQATRRAERR
—EENFETZA=-tT=HEXM

BE-_Z——f=A=+—H1
FER ARAAZERBROMRE
Bt FEAZRER0.208BTZ
1B 1% % fe 3 K& % 17 722,580,000
PR BR 0 (I R E B 2 KB KR A
12.8%) - R B EZ FTBRIEL
A H 45 150,297,00078 T © 3
TEEBROMEABZZHINRERE
FE(R A 5 B A% % 126,733,000 /&
T AR IEERR



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

28 Reserves — Group and Company 28 f#fis — *RERFELTF
(a) Group (a) FHKHE

2011 2010

—2——5F —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Share redemption reserve IR BB A 8 12 12

Contributed surplus (note (i) MABER(BTEE (i) 189,009 189,009

Exchange difference EREZE (1,910) (2,401)

Buildings revaluation reserve BFEMHE 16,339 12,338
Available-for-sale financial assets At EMBEES G HE

revaluation reserve 19,535 42,662

Retained earnings REBER 127,857 72,857

350,842 314,477

(i)  Movements of each component of the reserves )y RESDBIZEBHIANES

are set out in the consolidated statement of FEREBR -

changes in equity.

(i) The contributed surplus of the Group (i) ANEEZHARBEREZR
represents the credit arising from the reduction —WANFE=ZA=+—H1
of share capital during the year ended 31st FEHRRARBZ —Z—
March 1999, and the transfer from share EFEZA=Z+-HLFEHE
premium during the year ended 31st March # B R MRE (M 28(b) (i)
2010 (note 28 (b)(ii)). FIEE Z#ERR °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS ERAR MY R

28 f#ff — *KERELT (&)

28 Reserves — Group and Company

(Continued)
(b) Company (b) H=2F
Share
redemption  Contributed Accumulated
reserve surplus losses Total
B 473 R 1 6 AR RitER #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FA7 FE7 FE FA7
(note (i)
(Bt ()
At 1st April 2009 R-ZEBZNENA-A 12 153,110 (82,911) 70,211
Loss for the year (note 10) EREEAZ10) - = (4,234) (4,234)
Transfer from share premium BB ROEE
(note (i) (Kt (i) = 81,910 85,659 167,569
At 31st March 2010 R-2-2BF
=A=1+—H 12 235,020 (1,486) 233,546
At 1st April 2010 R=E-ZFFMA—H 12 235,020 (1,486) 233,546
Loss for the year (note 10) EREEMEZ10) - - (2,225) (2,225)
At 31st March 2011 R=B-——-%
=A=1+—H 12 235,020 (8,711) 231,321

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the par
value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued share capital of the
subsidiaries and the net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired, the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital during the year
ended 31st March 1999 and the transfer from
share premium during the year ended 31st
March 2010 (note (ii)). Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus shall not be distributable
if these are reasonable grounds for believing
that:
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KRB ZHABBEARRD
AIABHMHNERLRC T
FR 7S T 8% 47 2 IR 40 TE 1B B2 Y
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ERB8E=-ZFZ-—ZTF=H
=t-BLEFEBRDEE
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

28 Reserves — Group and Company 28 f#ff — *KBERELT (&)
(Continued)
(b) Company (Continued) (b) ELXF(E)

(i)  (Continued) i (&

(1) the Company is, or would after the (1) ANABFIREHAELS
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities MEEENEEEEIH
as they become due; or BXfAEE R

(2) the realisable value of the Company’s (@ AATEEZAUERE
assets would thereby be less than BE¥EmMIREEER
the aggregate of its liabilities and its HE BTRAURK G
issued share capital and share premium TR BERRZHF ©
account.

(i) On 21st December 2009, a special resolution iy R=TBEAFE+=ZA=1+-—
was passed to cancel the share premium H> —EENRAERRERR
to eliminate the accumulated losses of the DIaEeE IR 0% E - LIKEE AR
Company as of 22nd December 2009, and AREAR=_ZZENE+=A
the remaining balance of the credit arising “+t-HZEEE mH
therefrom be credited to the contributed EE 2 ERAFTARDF
surplus account of the Company. B ANBERER o

29 Trade and other payables — Group 20 ESREMEMRE — XKEH
2011 2010

—T——%F —E-BF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FEIT FET

Trade payables B S EAIE 4,011 11,749
Receipts in advance FEWFRIR 16,643 16,770
Other payables and accruals HinE(E R EFTE R 28,754 40,199
49,408 68,718
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e RS ERAR MY R

29 Trade and other payables — Group

(Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

(4&)

20 BHERAMEMNRE — AKEH

BEESRNFRZREDNAT :

2011 2010

—E——5 —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Current to 3 months BEiZ =18 2,209 9,933
4 to 6 months e = - 5
Over 6 months HBiE 7~ 1E B 1,802 1,811
4,011 11,749

R-B——ERZB-—FF=ZA=1—
A BEZENREZRAERZEQAFE
BE - WUATIEEREN :

At 31st March 2011 and 2010, carrying value of
trade payables approximate their fair values, and are

denominated in the following currencies:

2011 2010
—E——5 —E-TF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

HK$ BT 1,960 4,172
JPY B 1,400 745
usD ETT 651 6,832
4,011 11,749

REB——FR-ZF-—ZFF=ZF=+—
B ElRHE - HthERBERETE
AZEREEEEAFEMEE - R=F
——ER-_ZFE-ZEF=A=+—H H
WRIBFEUFME TR ETHEN -

At 31st March 2011 and 2010, carrying values of receipts
in advance, other payables and accruals approximate
their fair values. At 31st March 2011 and 2010, receipts
in advance are mainly denominated in SGD and USD,

and other payables and accruals are mainly denominated

in HKS. mEMEARER B BRI EZNE
TREM -

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 £ #§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

30 fERERMERANAKE — AKE

30 Borrowings and obligations under
finance leases — Group

2011 2010
—E—%fF —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Bank overdrafts, secured RITEX  HIRH 4,523 7,095
Secured bank loans — current portion BIRFRTER — RBIH 858 12,855
Bank borrowings — current portion IRITEE — REERHD
(note (a)) (H1EE (@) 5,381 19,950
Secured bank loans — non-current portion AIEHERITEFR — IERB I
(note (a)) (H1EE (@) 6,235 19,721
Total borrowings EE#%E 11,616 39,671
Obligations under finance leases (note (b)) @& FHEHEIE (f:F (b))
— Current portion — RENER D 755 3,023
— Non-current portion — ERENEB1D 252 -
1,007 3,023

(a) Borrowings o e
REBERBEANRTYIHREEE !

Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows:

2011 2010

—E——% —E-ZF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ETT FET

Within 1 year 1ER 5,381 19,950
Between 1 to 2 years 122K 902 2,403
Between 2 to 5 years 2ESFER 3,140 7,526
9,423 29,879

Later than 5 years 5% 2,193 9,792
11,616 39,671

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 £ #R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS ERAR MY R

30 Borrowings and obligations under 30 HERMERHEAE — FKE
finance leases — Group (Continued) (4)
(a) Borrowings (Continued) (a) BEGE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AREE

At 31st March 2011, banking facilities amounting to
HK$73,575,000 (2010: HK$87,576,000) granted by
banks to the Group are secured by the following:

(i) legal charges over certain of the Group’s
buildings with carrying value of HK$91,605,000
(2010: HK$80,192,000) (note 14(c)) and certain
investment properties with carrying value of
HK$77,625,000 (2010: HK$70,348,000) (note
16);

(i) corporate guarantees executed by the
Company (note 33);

(i) pledged bank deposits of HK$43,500,000
(2010: HK$43,517,000) of the Group (note
22(b));

(iv) financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$22,510,000 (2010: HK$18,454,000)
of the Group (note 23(b)).
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AEEREZREABUTIER.S
By :

2011 2010
—2——%F —ZE-ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#T FET
4,523 32,117
7,093 7,554
11,616 39,671

RZE——F=A=+—H &%
£73,575,000 BT (ZE—ZF :
87,576,000 T ) ZIRITEECE
RITRTFAEE > WHUTHEIER
#

() Bk ™ 1& £&91,605,0007% 7T
(== — Z % 180,192,000
BRLI)IZETAEEET
(Ffff 5E14(c)) R R E B 5B
77,625,000 Tt(= & — =&
% :70,348,00058 Tt ) Z &
FREWZE 2 EEHT (HEE
16) ;

(i) AABHEILZAAERMEE
2B)

i) &~ &£ B E & # F R
43,500,000 T(=Z & — &
% : 43,517,00078 7t ) (Fff 5F
22(b)) ;

(ivy AEERAFETTABRZE
2 B ¥ & E 22,510,000 78 7T
(== — = F 118,454,000
B It) (Mg 23(b)) ©



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 Borrowings and obligations under
finance leases — Group (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Borrowings (Continued)

At 31st March 2011, the Group’s bank borrowings
bear floating interest rate of five-year benchmark
interest rate for Renminbi-denominated loans by
People’s Bank of China. The weighted average
effective interest rate per annum of the Group’s
bank borrowings as at 31st March 2011 is 6.60%.

At 31st March 2010, the Group’s bank borrowings
bear floating interest rates of HIBOR plus 0.5%
to 1.5% and five-year benchmark interest rate for
Renminbi-denominated loans by People’s Bank of
China. The weighted average effective interest rate
per annum of the Group’s bank borrowings as at
31st March 2010 is 2.31%.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings
approximate their fair values at 31st March 2011 as
the borrowings carry floating interest rates (2010:
same).

Obligations under finance leases

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights
to the leased asset revert to the lessor in the event
of default.

The Group’s finance lease liabilities are repayable
as follows:

Gross finance lease liabilities —

e SRR MY R

30 fERERMERANAKE — AKE

(&)

(a)

(b)

BEAVEELE — REA

minimum lease payments ERIE

Within 1 year —FR

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 —F#ZEBHER
years

Future finance charges on finance RIERA Z KRR H
leases

Present value of finance lease RERNEEBEZRE

liabilities

BeE)
RZZE——F=A=+—H &%
BZRITEERTFRAARBITAR
BERZAFHEENRZZHR
B o NZE——F=HA=1+—
B AEBEREEZMEFIIERE
FZEE6.60E o

NRZZE-ZF=A=+—H &%
BzRITEEREBRITRAER
EMOSEZE1SEZEHAER
FEARBTAREERZAFH
HERZGE - RZZ—FTF=H
=+—8 AEBERTEEZNE
FHEREFER2.31E °

MNME T BRI S M
ZREERENR-2——F=f
=t-B2AVERE(CF-%
% : 4R

RRENRIE
HRENKENEEZRABRET
HEA  HENEEER EAEER
# o

AEFzREHRNEEENT I
EEE :

2011 2010
—E——% —Z-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

797 3,164

265 —

1,062 3,164

(55) (141)

1,007 3,023
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

30 Borrowings and obligations under 30 HERMERHEAE — FKE
finance leases — Group (Continued) (4)
(b) Obligations under finance leases (Continued) (b) RUEHPRIEE)
The present value of finance lease liabilities are MERNEEZ2REANT Y™
repayable as follows: BiE
2011 2010
—E——%F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TFET FET
Within 1 year —FR 755 3,023
Later than 1 year and no —FRERAFR
later than 5 years 252 —
1,007 3,023

31 Deferred income tax liabilities — Group 31 BIEFRRAR — xKH

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset fisi 78 A 4% 5% 58 1 3047 # Rl & B HA pr 15 8¢
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current EEHEANMEHEEIERSE  BIELRR
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities SHEEREEHER—BEHKER—@
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities FrEERBERHAKZFAERER
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation MEBEEEERFEEELAEHRE
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable B ELEEAHEEHEEEEHIKE -
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances KEHESTHMT

on a net basis. The offset amounts are as follows:

2011 2010
—Z2—5 —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Deferred income tax assets to be HREB 1288 ®ukE 2
recovered after more than 12 BIEFEHERE
months (4,663) (4,516)
Deferred income tax liabilities to be ~ #§RABB12{@AEREE =
crystallised after more than 12 ELEFTEHAsE
months 21,452 15,568
Deferred income tax liabilities — net JRIEFTSFIE[E — F5 16,789 11,052
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

31 Deferred income tax liabilities — Group 31 BREFMBRAR — *KE
(Continued) (#&)
The net movement on the deferred income tax liabilities EEFESHEERE 2F28MT

account is as follows:

2011 2010

—2——%F —ZE-ZF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FEIT FET

At 1st April 2010 and 2009 R-E—ZEFR-ZFFTNFNA—A 11,052 7,612
Tax charged to the consolidated RirE RN 2 B8

income statement (note 9) (H1a9) 4,970 3,839
Tax charged/(credited) to other REME2EER (KE)

comprehensive loss/(income) R (T AN) 2Hi8 734 (399)

Exchange differences EH =2 33 —

At 31st March 2011 and 2010 R-ZB-——FR-Z-FF
—p=+-§ 16,789 11,052
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

31 Deferred income tax liabilities — Group

(Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets

and liabilities during the year, without taking into

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same

tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

At 1st April 2009

Charged to the consolidated

income statement
Credited to other

comprehensive income

At 31st March 2010

Charged to the consolidated

income statement
Charged to other
comprehensive loss

Exchange differences

At 31st March 2011
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R-ZZNFHNA—H
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REMZEKEEA

P4
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P
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[1]
o> lh:: A
Il
m—rw
m

iy

2
>

REMZHEEEHR

EXEE

31 REFRBRAR — +5%H

(4&)

*%A%ﬁﬁéﬁﬁmﬁﬁ¢ﬁ%#%

T

BEFBRAR

Accelerated

tax Fair value
depreciation gains Total
MERERE LFEERR #ast
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FAET
4,316 7,336 11,652
657 3,658 4,315
— (399) (399)
4,973 10,595 15,568
105 5,012 5,117
— 734 734
— &8 &8
5,078 16,374 21,452




MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

31 REFRBRAR — +5%H

31 Deferred income tax liabilities— Group

(Continued) (#&)
Deferred income tax assets BEFRGREE
Tax losses
REEBR
2011 2010
—2——%F —Z-2F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FET
At 1st April 2010 and 2009 R-E—ZEFR-ZEZTIF
MmA—H (4,516) (4,040)
Credited to the consolidated income RizElaE=RTT A
statement (147) (476)
At 31st March 2011 and 2010 R-B——FR-Z—FF
=A=+—H (4,663) (4,516)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
HK$301,087,000 (2010: HK$283,366,000) that can be
carried forward against future taxable income. These tax
losses have not been recognised due to uncertainty of
future realisation. Such tax losses have no expiry date,
except for the tax losses amounting to HK$48,257,000
(2010: HK$1,558,000) which will be expired within 5
years; HK$27,674,000 (2010: HK$59,646,000) which will

be expired within 5 to 10 years.

ARMEFEDREERENRERA
REEBARIRERBAEFUAZEERR
BRARELEMBHREE  NEBEBKRE
R IEE1E 301,087,000 8 T (= —F
fF : 283,366,00078 7T ) Al 45 8 LUK 85 K
RZERBIUA o BT EEMEE A% IR EE
AER BUERRAZEMNESRE - Z
EREEEWEZEB - 48,257,000
BIX(ZF—ZFF 1,558,000 T) R
FFEREH > &27,674,0008 (==
— = 159,646,000/ 8 L) RAZE+
FRENHE -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS ERAR MY R

32 Cash generated from operations 32 BEXRBMER:
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to (a) MRFAAEMAFIHEESEBHRER
cash generated from operations Sz HIER
2011 2010
—Z=Z——% —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Profit before income tax FR BT 4555 A1 A1 59,448 59,839
Adjustments for: KAz
Amortisation of leasehold land and FHE 4 [+ i {55 F R 8
land use rights (note 13) (H1aE13) 788 555
Depreciation of property, plant and M MBRBETE
equipment (note 14) (BfaE 14) 8,298 8,383
(Surplus)/deficit on revaluation of BFEG (B HE
building (note 14) (HiaE 14) (87) 87
Surplus on revaluation of investment REY XS H A
properties (note 16) (B1zE 16) (31,001) (22,504)
Amortisation of film rights (note 17) B RS (HAE 17) 55,765 32,262
Provision for impairment of film rights & &/ iRAERE &
(note 17) (Hia£17) 960 2,555
Share of profit of associated FEAL B = A R A
companies (note 18) (HizE18) (276) -

Reversal of provision for impairment  F& B 1\ B FUBRE
of amount due from an associated B EEE (BaF 18(c)

company (note 18(c)) - (1,780)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHHERBEE 2 WE

financial assets (note 23(a)) (f1at23(a)) (7,055) -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale Al HEE K EE ZR{EFE

financial assets (note 23(a)) (R1zE23(a)) 1,261 =

Fair value losses/(gains) on financial AR EFFABRZR ZHHKE
assets at fair value through profit or ~ EZ AFEEE (k)

loss (note 23(b)) (K&t 23(b)) 10,945 (21,467)
Provision for obsolescence of PREFERME (KFt24)

inventories (note 24) 633 487
Fair value gains on derivative PTEMBITAEZAFEE

financial instruments (note 6) Wi (BitaE 6) - (36)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEME AR WS

(note 6) (M 6) (3,265) —
Interest income (note 8) MEWA (HtzE8) (638) (1,405)
Interest expense on loans and ERREXFIEMAE

overdrafts (note 8) (HEE8) 652 938
Interest element of finance leases RIERN ZF EE D

(note 8) (H1EE8) 169 287
Interest accretion of convertible notes AJ#2 % Z #5182 i1 > | £

(note 8) (HtEE8) - 2,210

Changes in working capital (excluding &E&E & & A (T~EE
the effects of exchange differences mEREZERERE

on consolidation): ZEE) .
Inventories =7E 586 (493)
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk HAFEWFIE 7,536 31,918
Amount due from an associated JE Uk Bt e N B FRIE

company (214) —
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABRR

through profit or loss 2B EE (11,916) (6,181)
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENSFIE (20,660) (11,712)

Cash generated from operations REEBABRE 71,929 73,943
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

32 Cash generated from operations 32 BEXBMEAL@)
(Continued)
(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year (b) FAMBFEESF
Obligations
Bank loans under finance leases
MITER R E A KRR
2011 2010 2011 2010

—§——% -—2-TF —B——% -—T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FRE T FHT  THET

At 1st April 2010 and 2009 R=-Z—FFK
—ZEZHF
MA—H 32,576 16,000 3,023 6,700
Proceeds from bank loans  $R{TEFZ 5= — 23,384 — =
Repayments of bank loans  {EEETER (25,808) (6,808) — =
Inception of finance lease Rl REMRLN
(note (c)) (Bt (c)) — - 1,510 -
Repayments of capital EEMERN 2K
element of finance leases EHD — — (3,526) (3,677)
Exchange differences [N =% 325 - - —
At 31st March 2011 and R-ZB——FR
2010 =
—E=+-§ 7,093 32,576 1,007 3,023
(c) Major non-cash transactions (c) EEHFREXH
During the year ended 31st March 2011, the Group BE—F——F=HA=+—HIHF
entered into finance lease arrangements in respect ER  RNEEMRTNERELREE
of assets with a total capital value at the inception #1,510,0008 T(Z &2 —ZFF .
of the lease of HK$1,510,000 (2010: nil). B)2EEURMEHEIRH -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

32 Cash generated from operations 32 BEXBMAR&@
(Continued)
(d) Disposal of a subsidiary (d HEMELR
2011
—T—%F
HK$°000
F#TT
Consideration received: B EmAE :
Interest retained by the Group as an associated  ZN&EE{REB/EHZE A E 2
company (note 18) (Kiat 18) -
Analysis of liabilities over which control was HHEHHEERFEZ&E
lost at the date of disposal: 2
Other payables H b e FRIE (50)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FE{S B 2Bt B A B RIE (3,215)
Net liabilities disposed of at the date of disposal RHEERHZEHEEEFE (3,265)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 6) HERBLARWE (/7F6) (3,265)
33 Contingencies — Group and Company 33 RARAR — FREREFLAF
Group Company
*T5E b 3/
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g——% —F-TF ZB——F —T-IF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FR#T  THT = FET %

Guarantees given to banks in  FiHtE AT 2RTE
respect of banking facilities EmmERITIESY
of subsidiaries ZHER - - 36,700 36,700
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 Capital commitments — Group
At 31st March 2011, the Group had contracted
commitments but not provided for in the consolidated

35

financial statements as follows:

e SRR MY R

34 BEX%EIE — Xx5H
RZE——F=A=+—H ' X&EEE T %
B NERRANGEHERRAELREZ
A

2011 2010
—2——% —E-2F
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFREIT FET
Commitments in respect of BETHIER Z2&E

— property, plant and equipment — I - HEREE 188 610
— film production — EF8UE 41,415 310

— film and program licensing — B REE WRERE
agreements 8,513 7,952
50,116 8,872

Operating lease commitments — Group

(a)

Operating lease commitments — Group company
as lessee

The Group leases certain of its offices and premises
under non-cancellable operating lease agreements.
The lease terms are between 2 to 20 years, and the
majority of lease agreements are renewable at the
end of the lease period at market rate. The future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

No later than 1 year 1FE R
Later than 1 year and no later than
5 years

Later than 5 years 5F B E

During the year ended 31st March 2011, the
Group entered into operating lease arrangements
in respect of rental expenses amounting to
HK$1,626,000 (2010: HK$1,705,000).

1FUERSFUR

35 EEHNRIE — x%E

(a) WERWRE — *RELFHES
AEA
REEIRE T AL ERO =
HEEZTHAZRYZE - AN
FoZ20%F BRAFBHBELNHZE
ATRFAERIZ T IZKTEME © RIB
FAHERERN T2 RRER

HERBENT
2011 2010

ot —E—EF
HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

3,545 1,073

18,004 2,551

48,423 _

69,972 3,624

BE—E——F=A=1t—HLEFEER ' &
EEFHHE£E X1,626,0008 T(=ZZF—=
£ :1,705,00087T) 5] MK EHRNZHE o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS AR TR

35 Operating lease commitments — Group 35 BEHVRIE — xKE(»)

(Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments— Group company (b) WEHHERIE — XKELFHES
as lessor HEA
The Group leases its investment properties to REFBRBEATHBEERIEE
certain customers under non-cancellable operating FTEEHBEEFZEYE - HPNTF
leases. The lease terms are between 2 to 4 years. 2B AF o REAAHELERD
The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under W Z ARREEESEBENT ¢

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2011 2010
—2—% —ZE-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
No later than 1 year 1F LR 4,107 4,529
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 1 &L ER 5 F LR
years 3,554 6,032
7,661 10,561
36 Related party transactions — Group 36 ARAEALTRS — F&H
Save as disclosed in other notes to the consolidated MRAGEMBRRAEMMEMIEEE
financial statements, significant related party o REBRABEXBBRERETZE
transactions, which were carried out in the ordinary REBEALIRZUT :
course of the Group’s business, are as follows:
(a) Sales of services (a) SHERF
2011 2010
—E2——% —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Rental income received/receivable HESERBTHENT
from rental of high-definition i ER, FE W 2 A 2 A
equipment to an associated
company 3,000 -
Rental income received/receivable FAEBAEYETEE A F
from office premises to an mUER, Rz HE WA
associated company 734 -
Management fee income received/ WER,FE R B A F)
receivable from an associated ZEBEBIRA
company 245 —
3,979 —
Sales of services are transacted at normal HERKNIZERERRMEREFE
commercial terms that are consistently applied to 22— REEGTCELT

all customers.
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XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 Related party transactions — Group

e SRR MY R

36 AREALES — FKHE

(Continued) (#&)
(b) Purchases of services (b) KRR
2011 2010
—2——% —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Post-production and origination 21t A TS AT
services paid/payable to an 2B EBMER R A R
associated company 19,417 —
Playout services paid/payable to an  BE1f B FEiE A
associated company Z B RTS 3,816 —
Other administrative costs paid/ 2 A TS AT
payable to an associated company Z ELABAT B A 191 —
23,424 —

(c)

(d)

Purchases of services are transacted at normal
commercial terms that are consistently applied to

all suppliers.

Key management compensation (c)
Key management personnel are deemed to

be the members of the Board of Directors of

the Group who have the responsibility for the

planning, directing, controlling and the execution

of the activities of the Group. Key management
compensation is disclosed in note 12(a) to the

consolidated financial statements.

Year-end balance arising from sales/purchases (d)

of services

Receivable from an associated FEUR B = N B FIE

company

BERZIZERERARFAEHE
2 — MR R IRFRETT o

TEEEAE#ME
FTEEBABEIRANEBRES
BRE  HEAESEFE  BR
RHRHITADBEE - TEE
BAEMESEREMBERERWE
12(a) P i E ©

HE MERBELZERER
2011 2010
—2——§ —T-%F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FHBT

3,479 —
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A E TS AR TR

37

38

Dividends

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend in respect of the year ended 31st March 2011
(2010: nil).

Event after the balance sheet date
On 13th April 2011,
of claim with no specified amount from a third party in

the Group received a statement

respect of a legal litigation against alleged fraudulent
conduct relating to the management of an associated
company which is under liquidation. Management
considers such claim arises in the ordinary course
of business and is well-justified, and the Group is
determined to defend its position. In this regard,
management does not anticipate any material liabilities
nor contingent liabilities would arise from this claim
and there would be no material impact to the financial
position nor consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Accordingly, no recognition of legal claim
provision nor disclosure of contingent liabilities are made

by the management for the year ended 31st March 2011.
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EETERRRBE_T——F=A
ET-—HEEEZRE(ZZE—ZF:
/) o

BHEHEER
R-Z——FWNA+=H XEEKEZ
BZHZHARRME(LEIEESEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T Rk R

39 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st

March 2011:

Name

4

Shares held directly by the Company:
FNFEERBRR

Mei Ah Holdings Limited

Shares held indirectly by the Company:
FRRRERARR -

Asia Pacific Media Japan Limited

Brilliant Idea Group Limited

ATEFRFEERLA

Cameron Entertainment Company Limited

EEREARAT

al

Era Movies Limited

Mei Ah (HK) Company Limited

ZL(BR)ERLA

Place of
incorporation

R 2 0

British Virgin Islands

ABELES

Japan

A&

Hong Kong

i

Hong Kong

&k

Hong Kong

&k

Hong Kong

&R

EHEAREE :

Principal activities

IRRE

Investment holding

REER

Television operations

EREE

Production of films and
tele-features

EXRERRREME

Production of films and
tele-features
EYRERYFAUE

Distribution of audio visual
products
BIYEER

Distribution of audio visual
products
BOYEER

Particulars of issued
share capital

ERTREER

50,050 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
wowv%&mﬁ
ETZEER

100,000,000 ordinary
shares of JPY1 each

100,000,000 RERAE 1
AEZERR

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

10,000 REREE
1BTZERR

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2REREE1 BT
HER

100 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

100 REREE
1B ZERR

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

10,000 RERERE
1BTZEER
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39 £EEE — EEMEATR
THAR=ZE——F=A=+—H2Z=E

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Group
FEEEE
REEAL

100

52

95

100

80

100
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39 Group structure— principal subsidiaries 39 RERE — ETERELT

(Continued) (%)
Percentage of
equity interest
Place of Particulars of issued attributable to
Name incorporation Principal activities share capital the Group
FREER
an A R 0 B TERS BRTRFHE REEAL
Shares held indirectly by the Company:
(Continued)
FLATMERARG : ()
Mei Ah Cinemas Holdings Limited Hong Kong Cinema investment 2 ordinary shares of 100
HK$1 each
FRFHERERAR i EYRRE 2RERER
1B ERBR
Mei Ah Development Company Limited British Virgin Islands  Licensing and sub- 50,000 ordinary shares of 100
licensing of film rights US$1 each
ABRLES RERBREHME wowﬁ@ﬁmﬁ
EnZEER
Mei Ah Film Production Company Limited Hong Kong Production of films and 2 ordinary shares of 100
tele-features HK$1 each
ZLEYRUFBRAR B EYRERT AU 2RERER
1B ZEER
Mei Ah Investment Company Limited Hong Kong Investment and property 2 ordinary shares of 100
holding HK$1 each
500,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$1 each
ZLNEREBRAT B RERMEER 2RBREE
1B ERBR
500,000 REREE
1B BRI
BEERD
Mei Ah Trading Company Limited British Virgin Islands  Licensing and sub- 50,000 ordinary shares of 100
licensing of film rights US$1 each
ABRLRE REREBREME 50,000 R BREE
EnEER
MATV Limited Hong Kong Television operations 4 ordinary shares of 100
HK$1 each
EnERERAR B EREE ARBRER

TR ZERBR
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39 Group structure— principal subsidiaries 39 RERE — ETERELT

(Continued) (%)
Percentage of
equity interest
Place of Particulars of issued attributable to
Name incorporation Principal activities share capital the Group
FREER
& A R L 0 B FERE BRTRFHE RiEaakt
Shares held indirectly by the Company:
(Continued)
FLATMERERR : (&)
MATV (Asia) Limited Hong Kong Television operations 20,000 ordinary shares of 100
HK$1 each
ZoER (TN ERAT B EfgE 20,000 R BREE
1B EER
Xiamen Meiah Pioneer Technology Co., Ltd. PRC Property holding RMB10,391,214 70
ERXTEENRARLT Gz NEEE AR%10,391,214 7
ERRAFAUL (LR ERAA PRC Organisation and sub- RMB10,000,000 100
licensing of films and
drama, and artiste
management
E R BREY AR#10,000,000 7T
ERBMEREAER
FOREREROBRAT Republic of China  Sub-licensing of film rights 2,000,000 ordinary 100
(“Taiwan”) and channel operations shares of NTD10 each
PERE(RE])  BREYMER 2,000,000 REREE 1055
SRRELE BEER
(@) Other than MATV (Asia) Limited, Mei Ah Trading (@) PFRXZBEEM)BRAE - Mei

Company Limited and Mei Ah Development Ah Trading Company Limited &

Mei Ah Development Company
overseas, Xiamen Meiah Pioneer Technology Co., Limited 9N B R RIGHNEE - B
Ltd. and ZTEME R XL F)ER A which PIXERBMRBRAARRER
operate in PRC, Asia Pacific Media Japan Limited SR AL (R BRA BN E

which operates in Japan and EDR&XRERNDE K& - Asia Pacific Media Japan
Limited A B AR &R & 2 oo R 44 3%

BREROBRIBDNEELEIN
ENBLARAEEEEBEE

Company Limited which operate in Hong Kong and

PR/A& which operates in Taiwan, all subsidiaries

principally operate in Hong Kong.

(o) EJFRBMBARRBRATE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 £ #R

(b) All subsidiaries listed above are limited liability

companies.



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XNRGENEBERAR

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T F I EAEIE

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five AEERBERAEFBREE 2%£&  EEHE

financial years are as follows EENT :

Year ended 31st March
BE=P=1t—HLEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
“g——% CZEZ-TF ZETNF ZTENF CZZTTLHF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FRT FET FET FET FET
Results E 4
Profit/(loss) attributable RAFERFEA
to equity holders of the FEEFIE,
Company (E8) 55,000 51,965 (71,529) (83,413) 21,033

As at 31st March

BH=A=+—8H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——% CZEZ-ZF CZZTENF ZZENF CZEZTLH
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities SERAR
Total assets BEE 675,566 543,073 474,351 576,191 444,934
Total liabilities Baefg (88,577) (127,953) (136,670) (128,672) (164,034)
Total equity MR 586,989 415,120 337,681 447,519 280,900
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAT

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
TERREVEM R

Percentage

of Group

interest

Address Existing use  Term of lease xEEZ
kit LK HE HA¥ER EaaS

Workshop No. 5, Nos. 15-23 and 25-28 Industrial Medium 100%
on 17th Floor Metro Centre ] FRER
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
NENFEE
R LT 32 5%
EEPLITE
55% ~ 15-23 97 % 25-28 35 T35

Workshop Nos. 1-2 on 10th Floor Metro Centre Industrial Medium 100%
No. 32 Lam Hing Street I R HR
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

i BT 32 5K
EEHPO10B1-255T 5

House No. 28 and Car Park Nos. 59 and 60 Residential Medium 100%
The Villa Horizon, Silver Stream Path [E2=] R HA
Sai Kung, New Territories

HRAE
285 FE R 5998 ) 60 SR E{

Factory Unit Nos. 23 and 24 on 5th Floor and Industrial Medium 100%
Car Parking Space I%* HRHA
No. V18 on Basement
Kowloon Bay Industrial Centre
No. 15 Wang Hoi Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

NEENREE
RHEE 155
NEEE T E A
512355 & 24 3 T EE 1
R i E V18 5%

By

Shop 2 on Ground Floor Commercial Medium 100%
Po Sun Mansion [EES HHA
Nos. 87-101
Bulkeley Street
Hung Hom
Kowloon

NEE
AL B
BEHAHE87-10158
BEHARE
# T 2 SRE L
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAF

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FRREVEMR

Percentage
of Group
interest
Address Existing use  Term of lease xEEZ
Mo hik 7)o P HHEH B2asok
Flat 1 on Level 3, No. 2 Hua Xiao Street Residential Long 100%
Tianhe Ming Ya Court, Tianhe East Road 1F= R
Tianhe District, Guangzhou
The People’s Republic of China
hEARENE
BEM TR E
TR R ER R A TS
EEH295301 E
Units 801-814 on Level 8 of West Tower Commercial Medium 100%
Yangcheng International Commercial Center [GES 2=t
Tiyu East Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou
The People’s Republic of China
REARENE
BT R =B R
P B PR B AR
a5 812801-814 F
Portion of Section 1 of Mei Ah Centre, Commercial Medium 100%
28 Chun Choi Street, Tseung Kwun O [GE3 H HR
Town Lot No. 39 and extension thereto,
Tseung Kwan O, Kowloon
NEBER
AE E R T b ER 39 3% I EIEHL I 5
B 2855
EnEEF L1 ERIBD
Units 2101-2106 on 21/F of Block 3 Commercial Medium 70%

Zone A1 of Qi Dong District [EES HHA
Guan Yin Shan Guo Ji Sheng Wu Ying Yun Zhong Xin
Si Ming District
Xiamen
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAENE
B
BHHE
BELERBBEER O
RREDE A1 tth iR
3551 21/8 2101-2106 EE T
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